Contents

Chairmans’ Message

10

01

How we started at the beginning of Year 2006
What we did right in the year 2006-07

22

Key achievements in the year 2006-07
The Road Ahead

38

Our Dream and Vision
Directors’ Report

44

30
41

Annexure to Director’s Report

47

Auditors’ Certificate on
Corporate Governance

48

Corporate Governance Report
Management Discussion Analysis

63

Auditors’ Report
Balance Sheet

67

66

Profit & Loss Account
Cash Flow Statement

69

Schedules
Notes to Accounts

“Every one of us in this world strives
to be healthy and fit to live a long and
purposeful life! It is the same with
corporations. And for healthy living, one
of the key ingredients is a healthy menu.
K. S. Oils presents its healthy menu.”
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What is Mustard
and how is it an
integral part of
Indian culture?
'Sarson' or mustard / rapeseed oil is traditionally the most
important oil for the Northern, Central and Eastern parts of the
country. Mustard oil has a strong smell and a hot nutty taste.
Mustard oil is central to Indian culture. It is a symbol of
Makkai di spring and renewal. The yellow of the mustard flower is
roti and
the colour of the spring. Songs on the theme of `Sarson'
Sarson
are an integral part of folk culture.

ka Saag

Makkai di roti and Sarson ka Saag (corn bread with
vegetables and mustard leaves) is the best known
food of North Indian culture and identity. For Bengalis, Hilsa
fish fried in Kacchi Ghani mustard oil is the ultimate delight,
and North Indians like their pakoras fried in it because of the
unique taste and aroma. In the South, mustard seeds are the
preferred seasoning for vegetables,
rice curd, and so on.

‘The force
behind our
refreshed
serving ’

Ramesh Chand Garg
Chairman

Dear Partners in Progress,

I

write to share with you our performance for the
year 2006-2007 - K S Oils has seen a wonderful year

and our recipe for the success has been meticulous

planning and ensuring a judicious mix of all
ingredients of our business plan - strategy, operations
and execution.
It has been a watershed year where we have
completely changed the way we do business, to me, at

While the company's

K S Oils, all of us are undergoing a major

performance

transformation. In the past one year we have worked
towards a 'healthier menu' and consciously taken

in the year has

steps which will help us in providing a 'refreshed

surpassed many

customers, shareholders, investors and partners!

milestones what stirs

While the company's performance in the year has

serving' to all our stakeholders - employees,

challenge
of the future

surpassed many milestones what stirs me is the

me is the

challenge of the future. On a macro level, it gives me a
great sense of pride to see India and Indians getting
the rightful place under the sun - globally we are being
recognized.
In the next part of my note, I walk you through certain
key happenings which I feel are strategic for K S Oils
successes and reaching higher peaks in the future.
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India - 2013
2003
181 mn hhlds

2013
231 mn hhlds
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Rich

11

46

Aspirers

124

131

Strivers

96

The shape of India is going to change from pyramid to a diamond

The Indian market place - from being just a
Pyramid to a sparkling Diamond India today is one of
the most attractive markets in the world maybe, even
ahead of China. A study by NCAER shows a major
change in the consumer class; while in 2003, India had
181 million households of which only 3 million were
in the Rich bracket and 46 million as Aspirers, by 2013
India will have 231 million households out of which
11 million would be Rich and 124 million Aspirers!
Thus the shape of India is going to change in the next 5
years - from being just a pyramid to a sparkling
Diamond.
We at K S Oils look at this new found consumer and its

We at K S Oils
look at this new

spending power with great interest - our research
shows that as a consumer moves up the value chain,
the household spending goes up in health products

found consumer
and its spending

like higher consumption of good quality cooking oil.
Our performance in the past year has been because of
our continuous thrust on creating high end value

power with
great interest

added products which will appeal to the young and
health conscious Indian spending class.
We at K S Oils are poised to be part of this new India
and provide at all times the new found consumer,
products and services of international standards so
that every Indian household not only prepares the
best tasty food but at the same time, the food is healthy
and high on nutritional value.
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Business Initiatives undertaken during
the year
Brand Power & Rising up the value chain
Our improved profitability is a direct result of our

Financial

strategic initiative in creating a company of Brands -

performance was

we are moving away from a Manufacturing led
company to creating a Brand factory where we will

achieved by ensuring a two

invest in strengthening our current & new brands,

fold strategy, what
I call 'margin

create high recall among consumers for our products
to have a pull effect at every point of purchase and
develop new lines of premium products which will
complement the high end lifestyle of the Indian

improvement'

consumer.

and ‘operational

In the current year, we have undergone a logo & brand

efficiency’

identity change and have created a new K S Oils which
is more customer focused and outward looking. Our
increased margins in retail led growth products and
premium pricing for all our brands have helped us
with better margins. It has also re-in forced our

Financial Performance

leadership position in the Mustard oil segment in

We had a landmark performance and the best ever in

particular and edible oil sector in general.

the past few years; we crossed the Rs. 1,000 crores
sales figure this financial year and clocked a

Aggressive geographic expansion - both
market and production led

mammoth growth of 79% with net sales at Rs. 1,088
crores. The net profit stood at Rs. 57.32 crores, a

In this year we pursued a dual strategy - enter into

growth of over 278% since the last year.

newer markets while maintaining leadership in the
The performance at K S Oils is very significant not just

North East and also create production capacity in

from the numbers viewpoint; this type of financial

other mustard seed producing belts. Today we have a

performance was achieved by ensuring a two fold

distribution network in place in all of Northern and

strategy, what I call 'margin improvement' and

Eastern India - which is helping us create our north

'operational efficiency'.

and eastern India market penetration strategy. Fifty

Going ahead it is my personal belief that value

crore Indians living in this mustard consuming belt

creation will not be by just increasing top line but

will benefit us in the years to come as future

needs to be powered with a much improved bottom-

consumers.

line; a healthy bottom line helps the business propel

We also have looked at additional production

growth by addressing two dynamics - plough back

capacities and have completed an acquisition at

resources in the company to aggressively pursue

Jodhpur as well as leased capacity at Alwar thus

growth in the following areas - R&D, product &

creating an extra 700 MTs. per day of crushing

people development, organic and inorganic growth.

capacity. It is located in the mustard growing regions

Secondly, create and deliver value year after year for

of Alwar and Jodhpur apart from the existing plant at

the shareholders of the company.

Morena. This North India belt focus will help us reach

The detailed financial numbers are shared in the later

out products in geographies of North and East, thus

part of this report which will let you compare in

being nearer to the production source and creating

details the improved performance of K S Oils.

logistics efficiencies.
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Organizational & Leadership Excellence
I personally believe that a great leadership team
creates an agile, strong organization with depth,
multi-faceted talent and professional management. It
makes me immensely proud to share that in the past
year, K S Oils have taken rapid and giant strides to
create a professional management and a great
leadership team. From being a manufacturing
oriented business, today K S Oils is on its way to
become one of the leading professional companies
with best practices in talent attraction, retention and
growth.
From employing external experts and consultants
who are creating new benchmarks in people practices,
K S Oils today can boast of few of the best industry

I personally believe
that a great

professionals in its board which has resulted in a
renewed energy and enthusiasm. This will leapfrog
the company into a pan India leadership position in

leadership team

terms of market and mindshare.

creates an agile, strong

organization with

The Future is Unknown but Exciting &
Challenging

depth, multi-faceted

While the journey has just begun, we have a long way
to go to create a perfect offering for the Indian

talent and professional
management

consumer; I share with you some of the interesting
recipes that we are cooking for our future growth and
will be implemented in the coming year.

A. Strategic New & Adjacent Business Initiatives
To ensure higher efficiency and reduced cost of
production the company is venturing into eco friendly
power generation; to save costs and create green
energy K S Oils is investing in wind farms for power
generation. This will not only reduce per unit cost of
power consumption but will be a move towards
creating an environmental friendly pollution free
power usage as a raw material.
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To ensure maximum efficiency and create value by
backward integration, the company is venturing into
bio-diesel production; it will be produced from the
by-products of edible oil, other derivatives and
origins of plant oils. The company plans to use this
bio-diesel for running its own plants and sell the
surplus if any as also provide consultancy to other
relevant industries for setting up bio-diesel
production.

B. Organic & Inorganic Growth Opportunities
Like our current strong financial performance, all of
us at K S Oils aim to reach the projected growth of a

I personally see a new professional management

top line of Rs. 1,850 crores in the coming year; we have

taking over day to day operations while the old hands

aggressive plans for this growth engine - organic &

and key investors participating in strategic growth

inorganic, domestic or global acquisitions!

plans of the company.

We are ramping up our manufacturing facilities; we
increase our crushing capacity to 5,000 Mts. per day

Creating & Enabling a People Ready
Business

by 2010 making us one of the largest players with a

The last but not the least, I along with my senior

Pan India presence.

management team in on a mission to create and

have already outlined green field projects which will

Enable a People Ready Business at K S Oils. It is my

Strengthening Core Businesses

dream to create an organization where employees are

We will continuously work towards creating a

empowered and inspired to solve problems,

dominant market position for our core mustard oil

collaborate with fellow employees, serve the

business; from increasing operational efficiency,

customer and seize new opportunities!

investing in R&D and technology to get the best

Along with creating long term profits for our

minds to run the business, K S Oils is well poised to

shareholders we as a company are responsible

become the leading health brand company in the

towards the society where we live; from ensuring the

years to come.

most transparent and fair business dealings &
practices to environment friendly work and products,
we are also creating few of the best minds for the
country by running a primary and secondary school
at Morena - the formative years which moulds a child

I personally see a new
management taking over

to take giant steps in the future and conquer the
world!

day to day operations
while the old hands and

With all your support and good wishes, we at K S Oils
are working tirelessly towards creating a great
company consisting of the best people, who will make

key investors

the best products and deliver it at the marketplace to
create complete customer delight!

participating in strategic

Sincerely,

growth plans

Ramesh Garg

of the company

Chairman
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Why are Oils an
Essential part
of our Diet?
Fats are the essential part of our diet both from animal kingdom or
vegetable kingdom. Research has found that unsaturated fats are
better than saturated fats and most of the animal fats are
saturated. For healthy diet at least 15 to 30% of the total
calories consumed should come through fats. 1 gm of fats
provides 9 calories of energy more than double the amount of
calories for the same weight of Carbohydrates or Proteins.
Fats are required for the efficient absorption of fats soluble
vitamin like A, D, E & K and also the source of essential fatty
acids which the body can not manufacture by it self.
Our diet should contain two essential fatty acids, Linoleic
acid and Linolenic. The two building blocks of these fatty
acids are Omega 3 and Omega 6, known as essential fatty
acids and the best source of these are vegetable oils. The
monounsaturated fatty acids (Oleic Acid) do not produce as many
free radicals in the body as by polyunsaturated fats. Free radicals
are damaging the body cells and required anti-oxidant nutrient
to neutralize their effects.
Cold pressed mustard oil expel by Kachi Ghani is rich in both
monounsaturated fats and anti-oxidants beside most beneficial
Omega3 and Omega6 fatty acids. It contains around 60%
monounsaturated fats, 32% polyunsaturated fats
(Omega 3 & Omega 6) and 8% saturated fats.
9

How we started at the beginning of Year 2006
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I

n the year 2006-07, we surpassed a memorable

landmark - crossing sales of over Rs. 1,000 crores, a

feat not many Indian companies have been able to do
so quickly. We almost doubled our turnover from
2005-06 and we did it by doing a lot of things
differently and it took a lot of courage and
determination to change!
Some of the things that we started out in the beginning
were to completely change our eating habits - the
company's first move towards becoming more
healthy, trim and fit! What we set out to change was
something that was practiced for ages and was
conventional, to turn around the whole practice

A new thought and
perspective was brought

upside down was a moment of truth for the senior
management but we did quite a few things in a great
way.

into play - to re-look
at old practices, to

Change Management Mantra
At the very beginning, the senior most management

challenge the

took a conscious decision to implement a Change
Management Mantra across the organization. K S Oils

customary and set

in the beginning of 2006 was very inward focused and

new standards

a complete mustard oil 'manufacturing' company
with a market leadership in North East and East India.
Thus other than routine production, there was no
conscious effort towards looking outward and
understanding the outside scenario. From the
beginning of the year, a new thought and perspective
was brought into play - to re-look at old practices, to
challenge the customary and set new standards of
play to become a reckoning force in the market.
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We are well on our

way in creating
newer geography
penetration strategy
because of our

Best Practices Benchmarking
K S Oils started a mission to benchmark itself with key

higher operating
efficiency

industry players in India and abroad - from
comparing financial parameters to production
standards to quality led issues. One of the important
points which came about in the benchmarking study
was that although K S Oils was a leader in its own
right and had market dominance in the North East &
East, there was a great scope of improvement in
increasing market share in other mustard consuming
areas of Jammu Kashmir, Uttar Pradesh, West Bengal,
Bihar and Orissa. We are well on our way in creating
newer geography penetration strategy because of our
higher operating efficiency and moving from a
production/ manufacturing mindset to a product led
mindset.
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To become fit to
prepare itself for the

Overhauling the system
The first step towards the great journey that K S Oils
has embarked was completely overhauling the

long marathon at
the marketplace and

present system and practices. From professional
management to driving operation efficiencies in
manufacturing to looking at the customer and the

create a K S Oils
with a pan India
presence having

market in a very outward and open way, K S Oils
started its journey into an era. With a strong retail and
distribution thrust, the company today has a strong
and well spread distribution network of over 350
Distributors and 35 Central Distribution Points which

market & product

is helping the company reach out its retail packs to a

leadership!

larger audience in a quick and efficient manner. The
company has a strong team of near to 100 people in the
marketing division which is ensuring world class
logistics support to create a fast and agile FMCG
company. Leading our initiative on making this
transition is FMCG veteran Sunil Alagh who has
come on board as the head of the Marketing Advisory
Committee.
Thus began the journey in 2006 - from producing
mustard oil which is extremely good for the heart and
people's health, the company itself was undergoing a
restructuring plan - to become fit to prepare itself for
the long marathon at the marketplace and create a
K S Oils with a pan India presence having market &
product leadership! Today the company has created
one of the most progressive marketing and sales force
thus creating immense value in the Pan India
distribution set up and better servicing to retailers so
that they could replenish products as and when
consumers demand. An attractive packaging and
retail pack sales have led to improved retail sales ratio
and healthier margins.
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In what ways is
Mustard better
than other
edible oils?
Types of Edible oils available in the market Filtered Oil: Obtained by the traditional cold pressing
method, this is filtered twice to remove suspended particles,
eg.- Mustard oil, Groundnut oil.
Refined Oil: This type of oil has been purified with
chemicals to remove any suspended particles, toxic
substances, flavor components, colour and odour,
thereby leaving behind a clear and bland oil.
eg.- Soyabean oil, Sunflower oil.
Key characteristics of Mustard oil - Mustard oil expel by
Kachi Ghani is widely known for its sharp, pungent flavor. This
characteristic flavor is an essential component of many dressings
and sauces world-wide. Unlike other "hot" flavors, the flavor profile
of mustard does not linger. Rather it presents itself quickly,
dissipates and leaves - little or no after-taste. Mustard oil contain
the characteristics flavor components of whole seed, ground
mustard and mustard flour (powder). The essential oil in mustard
inhibits the growth of certain yeasts, molds and bacteria, enabling
mustard to function as a natural preservative.
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What we did right in the year 2006-07
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W

e would like to share our journey for the year

with you; it is very important for you to

understand our efforts in preparing the right dish for
K S Oils and the consumers. While the numbers speak
for it, below are certain qualitative measures which
we undertook which have resulted in the foundation
of the new K S Oils.

Mindset Changes
Aspiration is the key ingredient for our success.
Aspiration and the ability to dream that transform a

K S Oils underwent

set of ordinary people to extraordinary human

a mindset

achievers; these people provide the mental and
physical endurance for an organization to turn

change and
created an

around impossibilities to achievable and convincing
possibilities.
K S Oils underwent a mindset change and created an
organization of "can do" people; this mindset change

organization of
"can

to do things swept across the organization and

do" people

divisions - from the factory shop floor to the sales and
marketing team out in the marketplace. The change
was led by the senior management because we believe
a leadership by example (similar to management by
walking around) is the most powerful example for the
whole organization to emulate. Our Chairman and
Managing Director participated in a cleanliness drive
in the factory premises and it resulted in a sense of
ownership and participation in the whole
organization.
We have imbibed that openness to new ideas which
will be the key to our future growth as also learning of
global industry best practices and benchmarks.
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Business Changes
2006-07 was a watershed year as we completely
changed the way we did business. K S Oils for the first
time went into the market and understood the
changing customer preferences and then sat down to
tailor make its products as per the customer needs.
Consumer loyalty and stickiness creates an
immediate benefit in our sales and a long term value
in creating loyalty.
Thus certain attributes like Innovation, Customer
centric approach, Near to the Customer strategy was
imbibed in the company as also creating maximum
efficiency at the factory floor; thus to utilize the assets
and resources most efficiently and produce the

People Changes

maximum, was the mantra that we adopted.

We honestly believe in the maxim that the 'best minds

One of the other things that we did in the year, maybe,

work with the best companies'. At K S Oils the most

for the first time in the history of K S Oils was seeking

challenging but enduring effort has been in

external help. We realize that experts provide great

completely overhauling the "human resource"

value and opinion as to strategy and operational

strategy. From a factory set up where we practiced

efficiency; thus we have partnered with a host of

basic industrial norms K S Oils today is well on its way

consultants in the fields of strategy, human resource,

to become a 'people focused' organization to attract,

quality, communication and R&D. What has helped is

retain and grow the best talent available in the

getting an outsider's perspective to our initiatives and

country.

being challenged for all our current practices. These
neutral and learned opinions of specialists have

Thus, from undertaking a compensation benchmark

helped us in a great way in improving substantially

survey for the employees to appointing a leading HR

our service offerings and change our way of thinking!

consultant to create processes and systems in HR,
K S Oils has gone full steam in changing the current
practices.
Today people & talent in a company are no more
"helps to run the business" but clearly "business

We honestly

enablers" who will determine the future of the
company. A robust team of young, talented and

believe in the

professional people in the company can become a
harbinger of ideas and can create an atmosphere of

maxim that the

infectious enthusiasm, team building and drive the

best minds

company to new heights.

work with the

Leadership, Vision and an ability to translate dreams

best companies

into action are key to any organization's success - at
K S Oils it is becoming a way of life where people
empowerment, new idea banks and calculated risk
taking are being imbibed to create a people led
organization ready to take on the world.
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Governance Changes
“Knowledge has surpassed machines and the stored
value of money itself, is the driving force behind the
world economy. It is proven now that to create better
products more efficiently, full mental participation of
employees add value."
At K S Oils we believe that 'Governance' is basis of life
for all of us; from the very beginning of the company,
we have been driven by 'accountability, transparency,
fairness and above the board dealings' although
earlier we may not have been able to articulate it in
this many words. Thus, we believe that to attract
world class investors and partners, we have to
conduct ourselves with highest standards of
corporate governance and create an tremendous
sense of transparency in all our dealings and

At K S Oils

communication.
In the past one year, we have made gigantic strides in

we are

this area; we have increased our communication to all

benchmarking

of our stakeholders - trade partners, customers,
employees as well as financial community and

ourselves on

shareholders in a systematic way whereby instead of

governance

practices

an information overload, we have enhanced the
quality of information. At K S Oils we are
benchmarking ourselves on governance practices and
it is our aim to meet and surpass the
recommendations of the CII initiated Kumar
Mangalam Birla Committee Report.
We believe that "firms with stronger shareholder
rights have higher firm value, higher profits, higher
sales growth, lower capital expenditures, and less
corporate expenditure. Wealth creation is enhanced
through increased accountability to investors by
creating more democratic forms of corporate
governance and corporate monitoring."*
* Extracts in quotes from the website Corporate Governance
www.corpgov.net
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What is the truth
behind the low
heart risk profile
of Mustard oil ?
As per the latest study, mustard oil is the best oil for Indians as it
contributes to a lower risk of heart attack - almost half - in
comparison to that of other oils. This study was conducted among
350 cases of heart attacks in eight hospitals and among 700
normal people in Delhi and Bangalore by a team
comprising of experts from Harvard School of Public
Health, Boston, All India Institute of Medical Sciences, and
St John's Medical College, Bangalore.
The paper published in the 'American Journal of Clinical
Nutrition has study findings which state that following
advantages of Mustard Oil in comparison to others : "Use of
mustard oil was associated with a two-fold lower risk than
was use of sunflower or other oils." "Those who use mustard
oil for frying foods lower their risk for heart attack by 71 per
cent." The reason for the protective effect of mustard oil is that it is
rich in alpha linolenic acid, which is a source of omega-3
polyunsaturated fatty acids, known for giving protection to heart.

21

Key achievements in the year 2006-07
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A. Robust Financial Performance & Efficiency
Financials & Efficiency
The year 2006-07 at K S Oils has been very
commendable both in terms of business growth and

A

healthy and regulated diet practiced with

profitability. It has been a year when sales crossed the

discipline and regularity over a period of time

magical 1,000 crores and we closed the year with a

helps the body shed excess fat, tones up the muscles

turnover of Rs. 1,088 crores as compared to Rs. 608

and energizes the body and soul to take fresh leaps

crores in the previous year, a jump of a massive 79%

forward in a fast and big way. Our changed dietary

over 2005-06. The top line growth was matched with

habits at K S Oils over the past one year have resulted

an equally impressive bottom line growth - Net Profits

in some great achievements which we share in the

stood at Rs. 57.32 crores, a jump of over 278% from the

next part of our note.

previous year number of Rs. 15.17 crores.
It is interesting to note that the net profit as a
percentage of sales in the current year is 5.27% which
is more than double of 2.49% registered in the
previous year. Thus the company has been able to

Net profit as a
percentage of sales in
the current year is
5.27% which is
more than double of
2.49% registered

register higher profitability by following a two fold
approach - reducing cost of operations while at the
same time charging a premium on its retail products.
The consumers' readiness to pay the premium which
has resulted in the better margin realization is surely a
comment on the consumers' faith in the K S Oils
brand. The company continuously will be focusing on
increasing margins and move into the high value
product space, thus addressing the bigger strategy of
K S Oils - from being a pure commodity player to a
strategic brand led FMCG product focused company.

in the previous year

EBITDA for 2006-07 has touched Rs. 93.76 crores, an
increase of 240% from last year's Rs. 27.60 crores. The
ratios across various financial parameters have shown
a marked improvement and are comparative to
industry standards.

EBITDA ( Rs. Crore )
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2006-07

Capex
At K S Oils, we have announced the setting up of new
Greenfield projects. Five new state of the art
manufacturing facilities are being planned in the
Mustard and Soya growing belts; the company
proposes a capital investment of over Rs. 650-750
crores. The plants will be operational in the next two
years, the results of which would be seen in FY 2009
and FY2010. The land acquisition and construction
work for the proposed Greenfield projects is already
underway.
The company has in the meanwhile entered into a
strategic tie up with an Alwar based manufacturing
plant which will result in an additional top line of
Rs. 350 - 400 crores, about 20% of the turnover target
for the year 2007-08. K S Oils is working towards

Fund infusion

making this plant fully operational and will invest in

K S Oils in the current year has been able to get firm

technology, machinery and people to upgrade it to

commitments from the current shareholders and also

global standards. This arrangement will be up for

have attracted strategic partners for being partners in

review once the Greenfield plants are operational.

the growth process.
As we all know, globally, Private Equity money is
scarce and PE firms undertake the strictest diligence
before investing in a company. It was a moment of
great pride and an outsider's stamp of approval, when

Five new state of the
art manufacturing

for the first time in the history of Indian private equity
space, K S Oils - the only listed edible oil company in
the country received a Private Equity nod with a Rs. 90

facilities are being
planned in the
Mustard and Soya

acquisitions

growing belts; the company

As a measure of the promoter group's commitment in

crore committed investment in the form of equity and
warrants from Citigroup Venture Capital
International Growth Partnership Mauritius Ltd. It
will be used for capacity expansions and future

proposes a

taking K S Oils to greater heights, 23 lakh warrants,
each convertible into one equity share at Rs 180 each

capital investment of over

were subscribed by the Promoters.

Rs. 650-750 crores

The company in the year 2006-07 has raised Rs 1.31
billion through issue of shares and warrants to private
equity investors, Citigroup Venture Capital
International Growth Partnership Mauritius Ltd. and
promoters.
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B. Market share dominance & increased
product profitability
K S Oils in the year 2006-07 have been extremely
successful in its dual strategy of new market growth
and increased product profitability. The real measure
of success for any branded company is not its
production strength but the ability to connect with the
consumers and create new age brands as per
customer requirements.
With its leadership position remaining unchallenged
in the North East where it enjoys nearly 40% market
share and a very high brand recall and loyalty, the
company has during the year very successfully made
inroads into new geographies like Uttar Pradesh,
Uttaranchal, Chhattisgarh, Rajasthan, Jammu
&Kashmir, West Bengal, Bihar and Orissa which has
resulted in a significant contribution to the turnover
of the company. The company has set up a successful

As planned during the year, based on consumer

sales and distribution network in these new states and

feedback, the company has heavily invested in
creating retail led consumer offerings - sachets, pet

is well on its way of creating a pan India presence.

bottles and family packs in which its leading brands
are being made available. Also, the company has
created an awareness campaign on the purity of the
K S Oils products - healthy container packaging,
tamper proof seals and unadulterated mustard oil
which has resulted in consumers going for repeat
purchases for these products.

The company

This has led to a better per pack realization and

has created

increased contribution to profits. In the current year
branded sales as a percentage of total sales have

an awareness
campaign on the

peaked at 60% from the previous figure of just 48%.
We hope to work on this continuously and in the
coming year improve on the current numbers.

purity of the
K S Oils
products
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The company completely

overhauled the
production facility at the

C. Growth through capacity expansion and
manufacturing plant acquisitions

Morena plant

K S Oils has registered an astounding growth of 79%

and used various cost

in top line in the current year - this stupendous growth
could never be achieved with just increasing

efficiency measures

operational and plant efficiency. The company

to shore up the

throughout the year worked continuously on a dual

production capacity
utilization

methodology of creating plant production efficiency
and also looking for ready-to-roll manufacturing
facility in key geographies where the company was
looking for market penetration. The ability to marry
both the above objectives in a very strategic and
balanced manner has resulted in K S Oils crossing the
Rs. 1,000 crores sales in the current year.

Capacity Expansion

Manufacturing plant acquisitions

The company completely overhauled the production

With K S Oils plan to enter newer markets in India, it

facility at the Morena plant and used various cost

was imperative that plant locations in new

efficiency measures to shore up the production

geographies will help in being nearer to the customer

capacity utilization. This has brought down the cost

as also save on logistics costs. The company thus

per unit production and also the input costs. One of

strategically looked at similar manufacturing facilities

the first steps in this direction was to increase

which would be able to add to the production capacity

geographical expansion which resulted in better

of the company.

capacity utilization and production planning.

During the year, the company acquired an edible oil

Also, certain technology investments were made in

plant in Rajasthan; the plant located in the mustard

upgrading the plant and machinery as also

seed growing belt has a crushing capacity of 225

mechanizing a lot of processes, thus eliminating the

tonnes per day and a refining capacity of 100 tonnes

human intervention. This saved on time and

per day.

increased on efficiency. This one stop production
shop was strategic to the retail growth as end to end
quality monitoring could be done under one roof and
certain attributes of K S Oils brands like purity,
pungent smell of best quality mustard and quantity
was ensured within the company premises itself as no
outsourcing was involved.
The modernization of the Morena plant is complete
and has added another 225 MTs per day to the
crushing and 150 MTs per day to refining capacity.
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Another R&D focus led movement has been in the
retail led production business; from ensuring that the
end consumer gets the same oil as had left the factory,

One of the key

K S Oils has put the strictest quality measurement and

reasons for

proof seals and quantity measurement so that the end

K S Oils eminent

consumer gets the K S Oils promise - the best quality

safeguard in place in terms of packaging, tamper

position has been
its focus on quality
of its mustard oil

mustard oil available in the country.

D. Human Resource & Talent creation
We honestly believe that people are a key to business
especially in the knowledge era; we have moved
ahead of the manufacturing mindset and well on our
way to create one of the finest organizations in the
country - be it people or human resource practices.

D. R&D led production focus

The company has completely overhauled its HR

One of the key reasons for K S Oils eminent position

practice and through external help undertaken a

has been its focus on quality of its mustard oil which

human transformation exercise which is resulting in

has a fair amount of research and development

more employee satisfaction, positive feedback and

activity which was very quality focused. To ensure

criticism and helping us create leaders for tomorrow.

efficiency, we at K S Oils used R&D for getting a reassurance on the quality, develop products for the

K S Oils during the year has also attracted few of the

retail segment and ensure production quality across

best talent in the country; thus we have Sunil Alagh,

all batches of production.

ex - MD & CEO, Britannia Industries joining the
company as the Head - Marketing Advisory

As a first initiative, a strong testing focus was created

Committee and R. Ganesh, a leading management

towards the mustard seed procured from the open

consultant with specific focus on MIS and change

market - mandi. While the seeds are bought from

management joining the company as an Executive

various mandis across the region and different

Director. Other than this, the company appointed a

suppliers, a quality focus helped the company zero-in

number of senior management personnel in HR,

on the highest yield seeds from which maximum

Finance, Marketing and Production. The company is

mustard oil was extracted. This very process of

working closely with a leading leadership

getting to know the key mandis and suppliers whose

consultancy firm, Grow Talent (subsidiary of Right

seeds had the highest yield have made the company

Management, USA) to create a people centric

zero on the best quality seeds at the initial buying

organization.

stage itself.
With renewed focus on training, people development
At the production level, a strict R&D led process has

and compensation, K S Oils is well on its way to

been initiated which ensures maximum utilization of

attract, retain and grow the best talent in this country.

resources and the most efficient use of processes.
Thus from extracting the last amount of oil from the
seed to ensuring minimum transmission loss of the oil
during the refining process to recycling of resources,
R&D has ensured an efficient production process
which has resulted in reduction in the cost of
production and at the same time, production
efficiencies going up substantially.
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Health and
Nutritional
properties of
Mustard Oil
Mustard oil contains Palmatic acid, an essential component of
edible oils recommended by World Health Oragnisation.
Isothiocynate, Philotex, Phitinis, Calcium and Zinc and antioxidants of mustard oil are protector against Cancer. Presence
of Calcium and Zinc and absence of trans-fatty acids
makes it ideal oil for heart.
The key advantage of Mustard oil is that it is Cholesterol
free and also contains Vitamin E which serves as an anti-oxidant
preventing the formation of free radicals from the breaking
down of Polyunsaturated Fats (during frying).
Mustard Oil has the lowest amount of saturated fats contents
among all the available oils. The Saturated Fatty acids elevate
the Serum Cholesterol and are the primary dietary factors for
high blood pressure and cardio vascular failure. Mustard oil is a
good source of vitamin E, and K which gives its anti-oxidant
and regenerative virtues.
This oil is a queen of oils even more beneficial than Olive oil which
lacks Omega 3. It has also been observed that the Omega-3 fats are
beneficial for expecting mothers and their child, playing a key role
in the development of the human brain during pregnancy
and first two years of life.
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The Road Ahead
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All of us are
undergoing a

metamorphosis we are unlearning

A

our past and
t K S Oils we always believe that any journey

well begun is half done. While we had a great year in

re-learning

2006-07, we are excited about the future. A future

the future

which beckons us to challenges and makes all of us to
perform better. Surely, while we have been
performing outstandingly in the past year, we think, it
is the right time, to add spice to our menu. We believe

transition to a "value" centric business model. The

that to remain agile, run faster than the fastest and

management will consist of a talent pool of managers

make the mind work the best, we need a different

who have earned there spurs on the floor shop - thus

dose of inputs which will help the company take a

creating a company which is completely led by 'value

leap of faith in its growth trajectory - at

creation'.

K S Oils we

believe that that days of incremental growth are over

It is our belief that a great corporation must have a life

and we have are putting our best foot forward for

of hundred years and hence for the road ahead, we

tangential growth!

should not forget the lessons that we have learnt in the
past. Yes, we are creating a 'learning organization'.

A. Change Management

From the past, we bring in an enduring value system

We, the senior management at K S Oils honesty

standing rock solid on the pillars of hard work &

believes that we are undergoing a change

honesty, transparency & fairness, integrity &

management in the company; it is a state where there

confidence. The above will help us tide over difficult

is a complete absolving of the way we do things and

times, market conditions and ethical management

looking at the future from ground zero, starting of a

issues.

new beginning! It has been a great journey till now but
the next 5-10 years will be very critical to the history of

We are creating a DNA of Meritocracy, Speed,

K S Oils. All of us are undergoing a metamorphosis -

Imagination, Innovation and Execution. These
attributes will be the key to any company achieving

we are unlearning our past and re-learning the future.

success and becoming world class.

One of the most important measures in our change
management strategy is the way we have been doing

The last but not the least, is putting the 'market place'

business and the way we will do it from now on. From

and 'customers' at the top of the pyramid. We as an

a production led mindset where all the focus was on

organization need to be ready and flexible to change -

manufacturing at the plant, K S Oils is creating a

changing consumer needs, changing market

management culture which will ensure that we

dynamics and changing face of competition! Thus, as
a global corporation, we are readying ourselves for
the fight of the consumers' wallet while we are aware
that hundreds of smart organizations like us are going
after the same wallet!

31

B. From an oil manufacturing company
to an integrated edible oil FMCG player
At K S Oils we are becoming a 'customer centric' and
'customer focused' organization which we feel will
help us address the sweeping changes undergoing at
the marketplace. Going ahead, we not only have
ambitions of creating market dominance in the newer
markets of North and East India which we are
focusing on but ultimately have global vision of
becoming a leading player among the best in the
world.
Keeping the above in mind, we are changing

Looking at a global and macro scale, K S Oils looks at

ourselves from a pure play mustard oil

Indian and international trade policy and trade

manufacturing company to an integrated edible oil

performance in the commodity sector in the backdrop

FMCG player while maintaining our dominance over

of continuing economic crisis and regional trade

the mustard oil segment. We should not mistake our

imbalance. Thus, the company is working towards

initiative as a move towards us giving less focus to our

four key areas as an industry leader to ensure a sense

mustard oil business as we see a tremendous potential

of stability and predictability - liberalization of trade

in our core strength and growing this part of the

in services, commodity price risk management, trade

business substantially.

facilitation & internet commerce and trade &
investment information networking.

Today, 50 crores Indians consume mustard oil on a
regular basis in the 6 states of North India constituting
90% of mustard oil produced in India. We believe that

B. New & Adjacent Business Initiatives

this is the greatest opportunity for K S Oils to convert

In the coming years, we have serious plans of

this segment and grow them into buying branded

developing new and adjacent business initiatives for

K S Oils products.

K S Oils. These strategic diversifications completely fit
into our plan of increasing synergies with the current

Also, based on global estimates, per person per

business and add stakeholder value. The reasons for

annum consumption of edible oil is lowest in India at

our venturing into power generation and boi diesel

11.5 kg against the global average of 20.50kg - this is

production is very clear - it has future opportunity

what we see as the biggest opportunity for us - as an

and clear revenue generation model.

integrated commodity sector player, we wish to
increase the per person consumption of mustard oil in
the country. Also, with India being the 4th largest
edible oil company in the world after USA, China and

Per person per annum
consumption of edible oil is

Brazil, edible oil demand by the year 2015 is expected
to be 21.3 million tons from the current 11 million
tons.

lowest in India at

The company plans to get into backward and forward

11.5 kg against the global

integration to capture value and increase efficiency in

average of 20.5 kg this is what we see as the

every part of the value chain; thus the company is
aggressively looking at mustard seed farming to have
better control over raw material production - both

biggest opportunity
for us

quality and quantity.
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speed - Gujarat and Rajasthan. As you are aware, any
wind turbine that is installed in a very windy area
generates less expensive electricity than the same unit
installed in a less windy area. So it's important to

One of the reasons
for us getting into

assess the wind at the potential site which we have
done and chosen the most wind efficient areas. The
other part of the strategy is whereby we will be able to

wind energy is

generate revenue by selling the power generated to
the State Electricity Boards. The extra power

because it is

generated will not only be green and pollution free

pollution-free

but will be of use to industries in power starved states
and geographies in India.

and an infinitely

sustainable form

Bio diesel
Bio diesel production is another area that K S Oils

of energy.

plans to diversify; while for us to a certain extent, it is a
by-product led investment, at a macro level, it's an
investment into a clean fuel. Biodiesel is a clean

Green Power Generation

burning alternative fuel, produced from domestic,

One of the most strategic decisions that K S Oils has

renewable resources and contains no petroleum, but

taken for its future is the diversification into wind

can be blended at any level with petroleum diesel to

power (green power). Wind energy converts kinetic

create a Biodiesel blend. Biodiesel is simple to use,

energy that is present in the wind into more useful

biodegradable, nontoxic and essentially free of sulfur

forms of energy such as mechanical energy or

and aromatics.

electricity. One of the reasons for us getting into wind

Biodiesel is made through a chemical process called

energy is because it is pollution-free and an infinitely

transesterification whereby the glycerin is separated

sustainable form of energy. Wind power doesn't

from the fat or vegetable oil. The process leaves

require fuel; it doesn't produce greenhouse gasses,

behind two products -- methyl esters (the chemical

and it doesn't produce toxic or radioactive waste.

name for Biodiesel) and glycerin (a valuable

We hope to make use of our power generation

byproduct usually sold to be used in soaps and other

business in two ways - the most immediate and visible

products). The Biodiesel produced would be used as a

would be the use of this power in our own plants

source of clean energy in our manufacturing facility,

which will reduce the cost of power per unit with no

again bringing down energy costs considerably. The

transmission losses. Also, to ensure maximum

excess will be sold to other manufacturing units at

efficiency and Return on Investment (ROI), we have

prevailing commercial rates to create profitability for

chosen geographies which have maximum wind

the company.
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D. Creating a Brand Factory
One of our most strategic and powerful direction has
been transforming ourselves on a three way path from a manufacturing company to a marketing
organization to a Brand Factory. We have to a certain
extent transformed ourselves to a marketing
organization and in the current year reaped the
benefits of our retail thrust - higher margins in our
retail packs and also higher brand recall and
consumer loyalty.
Architect’s impression of our proposed Corporate Office at Morena

Going ahead, we want to be a Brand Factory - an Idea
factory based on consumer insights, needs and future
need predictions. As has been the last decade, where
'people' value started replacing 'machine' value, we
still evolving, we are sure that brands will contribute

feel, for us, we ultimately want to move to a 'brand'
value scenario - connecting emotionally and

maximum profitability to the financial strength of the

intellectually with consumers.

company - profitability in terms of financial
profitability, consumer trust & loyalty and future
valuations.

Going ahead,
we want to be a

At K S Oils, we are investing heavily in R&D - bringing
the best technology and minds together to create idea
led solutions and products. It is a proud moment for

Brand Factory an Idea factory

all of us to say that we are maybe the first edible oil
company which has invested into a R&D laboratory
with international specifications and equipment
equivalent to a pharmaceutical company.

based on consumer

While creating a brand factory, we are aware of the

insights, needs and
future need

trust and goodwill which a consumer places on us we are aware of that responsibility and one of the most
important factors in our mission would be world class

predictions

quality - we hope to create international standard
benchmarking for all of our products and services.

We will use ideation, futuristic product innovation
and consumer lifestyle mapping to ensure that our

E. Leadership & Organizational
Excellence

products are as per the changing consumer needs.
Also, we as a company want to very clearly be high on

As mentioned earlier, at K S Oils we have taken huge

the value chain - which we feel would only be

strides in the human resource arena and honestly feel

achieved if we are able to upgrade ourselves with

that 'people is a business enabler', the best people will

products which are complimentary to the lifestyle of

get attracted to the best companies. While in the

high end consumers.

current year, we have been able to put across a people
change strategy and recruited a robust senior

We are closely trying to understand some of the global
FMCG companies thrust into certain ideas like

management team, we aim to create a strong

'Power' brands and 'Master' brands; while these are

leadership culture in K S Oils - across
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businesses, across divisions and across hierarchies! It
is our strong endeavor to create 'leadership' talent in

At K S Oils, we believe in

each and every employee of the company; to make

timely, accurate &
transparent

that happen, we are partnering the best leadership
consultancies and brains in the country and investing
heavily to create a 'people friendly meritocracy' based

disclosure and regular

organization. Our aim in the next three years is to

update of information

create a company with a deep roaster of leaders and
an organizational structure which will spur

on financial

continuous growth, innovation and ideas.
We are creating a second layer of professional

performance,

leadership with the best business and consumer

ownership and governance

experience and complimented with an infectious
sense of passion for excellence and passion; this
leadership team will grow into much bigger roles in

quality global investors and enhance the trust and

the times to come and ultimately lead the company

faith entrusted upon by the stakeholders.

into greater heights!
We strongly believe that to ensure transparency,
responsibility and accountability need to go hand in

F. Corporate Governance

hand; also it needs to be seen in the eyes of the external

Corporate governance is about commitment to values

world. K S Oils will ensure that in all issues ranging

and ethical business behavior. It is about how an

from customer care and business excellence to

organization is run not only on day to day basis but on

financial dealings, government and regulatory issues

the long run. This is not only about financial

to following the laws of the land in which it operates,

performance and profitability but a company's

K S Oils sets the highest standards of transparency,

culture and values towards its various stakeholders.

ethical standards and enjoys the greatest level of

At K S Oils, we believe in timely, accurate &

communication with the external world.

transparent disclosure and regular update of
information on financial performance, ownership

As has been rightly said while the stock markets value

and governance. In the past year, these measures have

companies on a daily basis, only eight in hundred

tremendously improved the understanding of the

companies globally have survived a century. We at

company, its business model and long term strategy

K S Oils believe that our integrity, honestly and the

of the management in the eyes of various

ability to just and fair decisions at trying times will

stakeholders, regulators and public in general.

help us be in the list of companies which have

Consequently K S Oils has been able to attract the best

survived a 100 years!
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What medicinal
and cosmetic
uses are associated
with Mustard oil?
Indian households have long been using mustard oil for its
beneficial properties, right from the times of Ayurveda. Mustard Oil
mixed with garlic and turmeric is used to alleviate
symptoms of rheumatism and muscular & joint pains.
Apart from this, Mustard is used as a plaster for lung
congestion and bronchial problems. Externally mustard oil
is used for massages and as a bath plaster to stimulate
circulation. Hot mustard baths of the feet and lower
legs are known to prevent or minimize colds.
Rapeseed oil is rich in Vitamin E, A and K and is therefore
excellent for skin and it being a very light oil is easily absorbed
in the body. In Hindu Mythology at the time of marriage paste
of turmeric and mustard is applied on skin of Bride & Groom
to give a glorious look and to keep skin soft, a tradition which
prevails from Centuries. Head Massage with Mustard Oil is
very beneficial and the presence of vitamin E keeps the hair always
alive and Omega 3 is best source to repair nerve cells.
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Our dream and vision
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A

Another area where we

t K S Oils, we have always been a bunch of

wish to integrate
backwards is corporate

dreamers. We believe in raising the bar everyday and
after every feat - this helps us in always reaching
greater heights, conquer new feats and take on the

farming including

whole world.
While we are proud and to a certain extent positively

Palm and other Oil seed

arrogant of our successes and doing things
differently, we also consciously have built a culture of

plantations, both

learning and humility for us. At K S Oils, we believe

in India and abroad

that we have just begun and if we look around, there
are much better companies than ours and we have
miles to go before we reach such excellence. At the
same time, we keep on benchmarking ourselves with

ultimate owner and the ultimate boss. They choose

the best and always try to keep a time frame to reach

directors on the strength of their abilities, character,

the same. In the next 3 years we would like to achieve

and capacity for independent judgment. And their

world class excellence in the areas of manufacturing

internal controls work well, so that the company's

Cold press Virgin Mustard Oil, and alternative

executives can take immediate corrective action when

sources like Biodiesel & Bio-Fuels. Another area

something goes wrong.”

where we wish to integrate backwards is corporate

- Chairman Christopher Cox

farming including Palm and other Oil seed

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission; Washington, DC; March

plantations, both in India and abroad.

21, 2006 - Remarks before the Committee for Economic Development

While we are unable to emulate in words about our

Responsible corporate citizen

thoughts, we have shared certain thoughts which will

“Corporate citizenship is an idea and a philosophy

drive us to achieve these next practices!

which has both ethical and economic dimensions. It
advocates doing the right thing. It gives more

Gold Standard Corporate Governance

importance to the means, than the ends. It expects

"Happy companies have robust growth in revenues,

business organizations to conduct themselves in an

strong balance sheets, and healthy profits that reflect

upright and straightforward manner. Companies

genuine business success, not phony bookkeeping.

have rights and responsibilities vis-à-vis the

And they share other important traits as well. They

community which they seek to serve Consumers

abide by high ethical standards, which is a key to their

today are interested in more than just the price they

solid success.

pay and the quality of the piece they buy. They are

They don't obstruct the flow of information to

asking hard questions about the internal management

shareholders, but rather view the shareholder as the

practices behind the brand name. They boycott
products of a company which fails to follow moral
and ethical standards. Managements around the
world are, therefore, concerned about these issues.
They want to protect their reputation and image. They
see the stark reality of social accountability as a
competitive and imperative sine qua non.”
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Directors’
Report
Dear Members,

T

he year 2006-07 has been a landmark journey for
your Company. Several path-breaking initiatives
were implemented with a view to re-affirming our
market leadership and enhancing our geographic
spread with a Pan India presence. With an enhanced
market share, especially in the branded & retail
segment and strengthened internal processes, your
Company proved its commitment to quality with the
ISO 9001:2000 Certification. Moreover during the year
the company has gained the confidence of the
investors’ by way of infusion of foreign equity
participation.

Business Results
The business performance of the Company during the
year was commendable. The company recorded a top
line growth of 79% with the turnover at Rs. 1,087 Crores
as against Rs. 608 Crores in the previous year. The profit
after tax also recorded a near four fold jump with a
278% increase to Rs. 57.32 Crores as against Rs. 15.17
Crores in the previous year. EPS also recorded 233%
growth and reached to Rs. 30 per share from Rs. 9 per
shares in the previous year. Your management made all
efforts to keep its promise of increasing revenues and
market share. The year witnessed wonderful results and
the coming years hold promises of your company
becoming a leading player in Indian edible oil sector.

Financial Highlights
(Rs. in lacs)
Year Ended 31st March
2007
2006
Domestic Sales
Less Excise Duty
Export Sales

1,02,214
6,533

56,263
4,555

Total Sales

1,08,747

60,818

Profit before Interest,
Depreciation, Exceptional items
and Taxes

9,375

2,760

Less : Interest

1,535

715

Profit before Depreciation,
Exceptional items and Taxes

7,840

2,045

Less : Depreciation

452

285

7,388

1,760

-

-

Profit before Taxes

7,388

1,760

Less :Provision for
Current Taxation

1,656

243

Profit after Taxes

5,732

1,517

Add :Balance brought forward
from the previous year

2,198

845

Balance available for appropriation 7,930

2,362

Profit before Exceptional items
and Taxes
Less :Exceptional items

Division wise operational performance for the year
ended 31st March, 2007 was as under
Oil Division
During the year Mustard seeds processed stood at
1,83,434 MT against that of 82,874 MT in previous year
thus recording a significant jump of 121% as compared
to previous year. Your company continued to be a
major player in mustard oil segment.
Refinery Division
Production of Refined oil stood at 50,270 MT against
that of 57,906 MT in previous year, recording a
marginal decrease as compared to the previous year.
Vanaspati Division
Production of Vanaspati was at 9,292 MT against that
of 10,046 MT in the previous year, recording a marginal
decrease as compared to previous year.
Solvent Division
During the year DOC (De Oiled Cake) production was
at 1,30,261 MT as against 1,10,697 MT during the
previous year, thus recording an increase of 17.67
percent over the previous year.

Which the Directors have
appropriated as under, to:
(i)

Dividend
Interim

Final (Proposed)

-

101

331

-

(ii) Tax on Dividend

56

14

(iii) General Reserve

500

50

Total
Surplus carried forward to
the Balance Sheet

887

165

7,043

2,197

Power Division
During the year power generated through wind mills was
46,32,383 units against 138 units in the last year. The
marginal production in last year was due to the wind
mills getting operational only on 31st March, 2006 and
2006-07 was full year for the wind mill operations.
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Dividend
In view of the improved performance of the Company,
your Directors are pleased to recommend a higher
dividend of 15%, aggregating to Rs. 387.85 lacs
(including tax on dividend of Rs. 56.32 lacs) as
compared to 12% aggregating to Rs. 114.84 lacs in the
previous year (which included tax on dividend of
Rs. 14.13 lacs).

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
As required under Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules,
1988, the particulars in respect of conservation of
energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo are set out in Annexure ‘A’ to the
Directors’ Report.

Transfer to Reserve
Your Company proposes to transfer 8.72% of the profit
earned during the year i.e. Rs. 500 lacs to the general
reserve. The Company proposes to retain an amount of
Rs. 4,845 lacs out of current year’s profit in the profit
and loss account.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act,
1956, the Directors confirm that –

Achievements
During the year, your Company has been awarded the
prestigious ISO 9001:2000 certification for Quality
Management Systems for Manufacturing and Supply
of Edible Oils. The recognition will go a long way to
establish K. S. Oils as a quality-oriented organization.

1.

In the preparation of annual accounts for the
financial year ended 31 st March, 2007, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

2.

The Directors have selected such accounting
policies and have applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31st March, 2007 and of the Profit of the Company
for the year ended on that date;

3.

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities; and

4.

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2007 on a
going concern basis.

Your company will maintain its Customer centric
approach with emphasis on continuous improvement
in the quality and value of our products
During the year 2006-07, the company has received
two prestigious awards - MCX Globoil Emerging
Company of the year 2006 from Globoil India and
SEA AWARD 2005-06 for Highest processor of
Rapeseed Oilcake awarded by the Solvent Extractors
Association of India, Mumbai.
New Projects/ Expansion/ Acquisition
During the year in terms of organic growth the capacity
of Oil Mill was increased by 225 MT/day, Refinery by
150 MT/day. In terms of Inorganic growth the
Company has acquired an edible oil plant at Jodhpur
(Rajasthan) in February 07 and entered into a strategic
tie-up with another edible oil plant in Alwar
(Rajasthan) in April 07.

Directors
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal, CEO of the Company was
appointed as an Additional Director and Managing
Director of the Company w.e.f. 25th November, 2006;
further his appointment as Managing Director was
approved by Members at Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 6th March, 2007. A new enthusiasm has
been infused in our organization with the appointment
of Mr. Sanjay Agarwal as the Managing Director of the
Company.

The plant at Jodhpur has crushing capacity of 225 MT/
day and refining capacity of 100 MT/day. Alwar plant
has crushing capacity of 250 MT/day, solvent extraction
plant of 300 MT/day and refinery of 100 MT/day.
After the successful operation of 2.50 MW wind mills at
Dewas (M.P.) the company has further erected and
commissioned three Suzlon make wind mills in the state
of Gujarat having a total production capacity of 4.5 MW.

Mr. Govind Prasad Garg resigned from the office of
Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 25 th
November, 2006. The Board of Directors placed on
record their sincere appreciation for the valuable advice
and guidance extended by him during his tenure with
the Company.

Listing of the Company’s scrip at NSE
The Equity Shares of the Company are also admitted
for dealings on the National Stock Exchange (Capital
Market segment) with effect from 2nd April, 2007.

Mr. R. Ganesh was appointed as an Additional Director
and Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 16th
January, 2007; further his appointment as Whole-time
Director was approved by Members at Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 6th March, 2007.

Management discussion and Analysis
A separate section on Management Discussion and Analysis,
as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchanges is given in the Annual Report.
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Mr. P. R. Srinivasan, was appointed as Additional
Director w.e.f. 23rd December, 2006, nominated by
Citigroup Venture Capital International Growth
Partnership Mauritius Limited.

Issue of Bonus Shares
During the year the company has successfully
completed the maiden bonus issue of 94,00,000 equity
shares by allotting one share for every one share held by
capitalization of Rs. 940 lacs.

As per the provision of Section 260 of the Companies Act,
1956, aforesaid Additional Directors hold office only up
to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company. The Company has received notices under
Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the
above persons, proposing their appointment as directors
of the Company, along with the requisite deposit,
therefore the approval of members is being sought at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Capital Raising
During the year under review the company has raised
Rs. 81,90,95,580/- through issue and allotment of
Equity Shares and Rs. 23,77,50,192/- through issue
and allotment of warrants, on preferential basis as
detailed below;
A.

Equity Share:
1. 41,91,656 Equity shares on preferential basis.

Mr. B. N. Singh and Dr. R. S. Sisodia are liable to retire
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

2. Re-issue of 1,07,100 forfeited Equity Shares.
B.

Fixed Deposits
Your Company has not accepted any deposits and, as
such, no amount of principal or interest was
outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Warrants convertible in to the equal number of
Equity Shares within 18 months from the date of
allotment:
1. 23,00,000 Promoters warrants to the
promoters and
2. 17,08,344 Investors warrants to Citigroup
Venture Capital International Growth
Partnership Mauritius Limited and others.

Employees’ Particulars and Relations
The Company did not have any employee of the
category mentioned in Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

Utilization of proceeds received on preferential issue
of securities
The aggregate of the total proceeds received till 31st
March, 2007 from issue and allotment of securities on
preferential basis were Rs. 10,568.46 lacs. The amount
utilized till 31st March, 2007 was fully utilized for the
purposes stated in the notice convening the General
Meeting held for purpose of passing Special Resolution
u/s 81(1A) of the Companies Act, 1956, such as for
organic growth, acquisition, additional working
capital and capital expenditure.

Relations between the employees and the management
continued to be cordial during the year
Manpower Development Process
During the year the company initiated a process for
development of manpower and engaged Grow Talent
Company Ltd. a Human Resource management company
which creates value by enabling the organizations and the
people to realize their full potential.
Auditors
M/s. Rathi & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory
Auditors, will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and they have informed that
they do not wish to seek reappointment.

Report on Corporate Governance
A detailed report on Corporate Governance has been
provided in elsewhere in the Annual Report.
Acknowledgements
Your directors place on record their appreciation for
the co-operation extended to the Company by its
customers, investors, bankers, business associates,
vendors and various government agencies and
authorities. The Directors also sincerely acknowledge
the significant contributions made by all the
employees for their dedicated services to the
Company.

However a special notice has been received by the
company from a member proposing the appointment
of M/s. Haribhakti & Co., Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors. It is therefore proposed to appoint
M/s. Haribhakti & Co., Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 20072008.
The Auditor Report for the year under review is self
explanatory and is not providing any qualification,
which needs to be commented by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Place : Morena
Date : 24th May, 2007
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Ramesh Chand Garg
Chairman

Annexure to
Directors’
Report
Annexure “A” to Directors’ Report

I

b) Additional Investment and proposal if any,
being implemented for reduction of consumption
of energy:
During the year the company has undertaken
Wind farm project at Gujarat, for installation of
4 Wind mills of 1.50 MW/h each, for total 6.00
MW/h capacity of energy generation, out of
which, 3 wind mills installed at Village Arikhana,
Taluka: Abdasa, Dist: Kutch, Gujarat were fully
commissioned in March, 2007, at an investment
of Rs. 2,552 lacs, whereas installation of fourth
Wind mill at village Suthri, Kutch, Gujarat, was
in progress on which, as on 31st March, 2007, a
sum of Rs. 768 lacs has been invested. Total
guaranteed annual generation from the new Wind
mills is 39 lacs unit per annum per WTG, which
will be sold to Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited
(GUVNL).

nformation pursuant to section 217(1) (e) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988.
A.

Conservation of Energy:
The company continues its attempts to improve
Energy conservation and utilization.
a) Energy conservation measures undertaken:
z The Company has monitored its energy
consumption regularly and has made several
modifications in the plant resulting in reduced
energy consumption, such as;

z

z

z

Installation of Capistators and UPS, which
have improved the quality of power supply.

z

Installation of Coal fire boilers by removal
of Diesel fire boilers, which reduces cost of
steam and utilizing 70% of condensate.

z

Installation of Pressure Recovery Valves
(PRVs) and TRAPS, which control and
utilize maximum heat of steam.

z

Installation of electric control panels and
High voltage control stabilizers.

As the 6 MW wind farm project as mentioned above
has undertaken in the state of Gujarat, where the
company is not having any manufacturing facilities,
therefore considering the present power policy of
government the company is not directly benefited
in terms of captive consumption of energy generated
by aforesaid wind farm, however the power
generated from these new wind mills, provide
additional revenue and income tax shield to the
company and the project being completely
pollution free and environment friendly will also
entitle us for carbon credits.

During the year the company has engaged
M/s. Winrock International India (WII), New
Delhi, a non-profit organization, working in
the areas of natural resources management,
clean energy and climate change, which
conducted energy audit and monitored the
energy conservation.

c) Impact of the measures taken as per (a) & (b)
above for reduction of energy consumption
and consequential impact on the cost of
production of goods:
As a result of above measures undertaken, the
power consumption in plants has been reduced
thus saving in energy cost during the period under
consideration.

The company has put in efforts to improve
overall energy efficiency by installing power
efficient equipments.
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d)

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production given in Form - ‘A’ below:
Form A
Form for Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy

Current year

Previous year

(2006-07)

(2005-06)

A) Power and Fuel consumption:
1.

Electricity
(a)

Purchase
Units

1,13,94,840

72,79,120

Total amount (Rs.)

5,15,77,166

3,09,01,105

4.53

4.25

75,55,036

86,69,791

Unit per ltr. of Diesel oil (Rs.)

3.71

4.01

Cost/unit (Rs.)

8.04

6.33

Rate/unit (Rs.)
(b)

Own generation
(i)

Through Diesel generator
Units

(ii)

Through Wind Turbine Generator (WTG’s)
Units
Total Amount (Rs.)
Rate/Unit (Rs.)

46,32,383

138

1,73,70,697

580

3.75

4.2

Note:- 46,30,692 units generated through wind turbine has been
credited against purchase of Units
2.

Coal
Quantity (MT)
Total Cost (Rs.)
Average Rate (Rs.)

B)

24,405

22,308

7,69,34,581

6,71,58,917

3,152.41

3,010.53

3.

Furnace Oil

-

-

4.

Others

-

-

(Per MT)

(Per MT)

71.87

72.67

Consumption per Unit of Production:
Product (with details) unit : Oil, DOC, Vanaspati Ghee
(Current year : 2,63,726 MT Previous Year : 2,19,458 MT)
Electricity
Furnace Oil
Coal
Others
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-

-

0.09
-

0.1
-

B.

Technology Absorption - as given in Form ‘B’ below:
Form B
Form for Disclosures of particulars with respect to absorption

Research and development (R & D):
The Company is carrying out research work on
mustard seeds and mustard oil so that more value
added products could be introduced. The company is
also developing derivatives and additives of Mustard.

z

To reduce the cost of materials, to effect import
substitution, process simplification and time
reduction.

z

Quality improvements and upgradation of raw
material suppliers.

1)

z

Quality Control.

z

Reduction of emission of pollutants from
chimney by installing Pollution Control
Equipments.

z

Automation of Packaging system.

z

Market surveys from a reputed organization to
ensure strong presence in Retail Market.

Specific area in which R & D carried out by the
company:
During the year under review efforts made in the
following areas with a specific objective of
optimization of process systems and adoption of
parameters ensuring Product improvement and
cost reduction:
z

Recovery of Oil from Spent Earth.

z

Upgradation of Solvent plant to improve the
quality of Recovered Oil.

z

z

C.

2)

Production of Bio-Diesel from Acid Oil, a byproduct.
Development of new cost effective process to
produce pungent Mustard oil from expeller,
instead of producing the same from traditional
Kollhu method.

z

To increase the yields at the farm level from
current Indian average of 1,000 kg/ hectare to
world average of nearly 2,000 - 2,400 kg/
hectare.

z

Development of company’s Brands “Double
Sher” and “Kalash”, mustard oil products to
expand market and increase consumption and
promote them as “Heart Friendly Cooking
Medium”.

Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D:
z

Development of high quality, value added and
cost effective consumer preferred edible oils.

z

Reduction in cost of raw and packaging
materials and reduction in product process
time.

z

Significantly reduce the emission of pollutants
into environment.

z

The quality of company’s products has
improved and thereby enjoying significant
position in the industry.

3)

Future plan of action:
The Company will continue to pursue its R&D
work on developing high quality products to meet
the ever changing consumer needs and adding
value to our products.

4)

Expenditure on R & D:
Charged to the respective heads of accounts and
not allocated separately.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo of the Company:
(Rs. in lacs)
Year Ended 31st March
2007
2006

PARTICULARS
a)

Foreign Exchange earning of the company:
Earnings on FOB basis

b)

1,693.99

645.75

1,087.30

2,102.15

-

47.66

36.53

-

171.15

149.14

Foreign Exchange Outgo:
CIF value of Imports
a)

Raw Material

b)

Finished Goods

c)

Capital Goods

Expenditure in foreign currency
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Auditors’Certificate on
Corporate Governance
To
The Members
K. S. Oils Limited
We have reviewed the records concerning the Company’s compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into, by the Company, with the Stock Exchanges, for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2007.
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representation made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with in
all material respects the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Agreement.
As required by the Guidance Note issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state
that as per records maintained by the Company, there were no investor grievances remaining unattended/
pending for more than 30 days.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as
to the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For and on behalf of
Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountant
R. S. Rathi
(Partner)

Place : Gwalior
Date : 24th May, 2007
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Corporate
Governance

Report

1.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance is a vital part of K. S. Oils’s
value system as it builds confidence and trust
which leads to a more stable and sustained resource
flows and long term relationship with its investors
and other stakeholders. The driving forces of
Corporate Governance at K. S. Oils are its core
values – Excellence and Customer Satisfaction,
Maximizing Long Term Value for Stakeholders,
Good Corporate Conduct and Environment
Friendly.

Executive and Independent Directors, to ensure
the independent functioning of the Board. The
Company has appointed Non-Executive Director
and Executive Director on 23rd December, 2006
and 16th January, 2007, therefore the parity of
Independent director has been affected, however
the Company is in process of, to appoint more
independent directors to comply with the
requirements of Clause 49.
None of the Directors on the Board is a Member on
more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more
than 5 Committees (as per Clause 49 (IV) (B))
across all the Companies in which they are Directors.
All the Directors have made the requisite
disclosures regarding Committee positions held by
them in other Companies.

Your Company is fully committed to follow the
procedures and practices in conformity with the
clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Stock
Exchanges, as applicable, your Directors present
the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance
as under:
2.

The Composition of the Board of Directors and
also the no. of other Board Committees in which
they are Chairman/ Member are as under:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition and Category
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of
an optimum combination of Executive, Non-

Name of Director

Category of
Directorship

Designation Directorship
in other Companies

Mr. R. C. Garg

Promoter –
Executive

Chairman

-

-

1

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal1

Executive

Managing
Director

-

-

1

Mr. G. P. Garg2

Promoter
Executive

Managing
Director

-

-

1

Mr. Sourabh Garg

Promoter
Executive

Executive
Director

-

-

1

Mr. R. Ganesh3

Executive

Executive
Director

Renoir Consulting
(India) P. Ltd.

-

-

Mr. P. R. Srinivasan4

Nominee
Non-Executive

-

1. JBF Industries Limited
2. You Telecom India P. Ltd.

-

-

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

Independent

-

-

2

1

Mr. B. N. Singh
Mr. R. S. Sisodia

Independent
Independent

-

-

1
-

1
2

1.

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal was appointed as an additional Director

4.

3.

Mr. P. R. Srinivasan was appointed as an Additional Director

and Managing Director w.e.f. 25th November, 2006, further

with effect from 23rd December, 2006, nominated by Citigroup

his appointment was approved by the Members at the Extra

Venture Capital International Growth Partnership Mauritius

Ordinary General Meeting held on 6th March, 2007.
2.

No. of Board Committees in
which Chairman/Member@
Chairman
Member

Limited.
@

Mr. G. P. Garg resigned with effect from 25th November, 2006.

For this purpose only 3 committees namely Audit Committee,

Mr. R. Ganesh was appointed as an Additional Director and

Remuneration Committee and Investors Grievances Committee

Whole Time Director w. e. f. 16th January, 2007, further his

have been considered across all the Companies in which the

appointment was approved by the Members at the Extra Ordinary

Director is a Member or Chairman.

General Meeting held on 6th March, 2007.
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Board Procedure
The Board meets at least once a quarter to review
the quarterly performance and the financial results.
The Board Meetings are generally scheduled well in
advance and the notice of each Board Meeting is
given in writing to each Director. The information
required as per Corporate Governance norms of the
Listing Agreement is made available to the Board.
The Agenda and Board notes for consideration of
the Board are circulated well in advance with the
notice of meeting so that all the Directors can actively
participate in the extensive and fruitful deliberations
on various agenda items put before the Board for
discussion. The Board is also free to recommend the
inclusion of any matter for discussion in
consultation with the Chairman. The Board is kept
appraised of the overall performance of the
Company by the Managing Director at the Board
Meetings.
Name of the Director
Mr. R. C. Garg
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

3.

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings
and last Annual General Meeting
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2007,
sixteen board meetings were held on following dates
and the maximum time gap between two meetings
did not exceed four months:
11th April, 2006,

28th October, 2006,

29th April, 2006,

15th November, 2006,

22nd May, 2006,

25th November, 2006,

07th June, 2006,

09th December, 2006,

30 June, 2006,

20th December, 2006,

18th July, 2006,

22nd December, 2006,

12th August, 2006,

23rd December, 2006,

19 August, 2006,

16th January, 2007.

th

th

Meetings held during
the tenure of Directors

No. of Board
Meetings attended

Attendance at the last AGM
held on 29th July, 2006

16

16

Present

6

4

-

Mr. G. P. Garg

11

11

Present

Mr. Sourabh Garg

16

16

Present

Mr. R. Ganesh

1

1

-

Mr. P. R. Srinivasan

2

1

-

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

16

15

Present

Mr. B. N. Singh
Mr. R. S. Sisodia

16
16

15
16

Present
Present

AUDIT COMMITTEE

z

Terms of Reference

The terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
are in accordance with the requirements of clause
49 of the Listing Agreement and as specified by
the Board of Directors of the Company and interalia includes :

The Audit Committee has been constituted as per
Section 292 A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
guidelines set out in the Listing Agreement with Stock
Exchanges. The Audit Committee of the Company,
inter-alia, provides assurance to the Board on the
existence and adequacy of an effective internal control
systems that ensures :
z

Efficiency and effectiveness of Internal Control
and Audit.

z

Safeguarding of Assets and adequacy of
provisions for liabilities.

z

Reliability of all financial and other information
and adequacy of disclosures.

Compliance with all relevant statutes.
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z

Reviewing the company’s financial reporting
process and disclosure of financial information.

z

Reviewing the quarterly and annual financial
statements with primary focus on accounting
policies and practices, compliances with
accounting standards and legal requirements
concerning financial statements.

z

Reviewing the adequacy of internal control
system and internal audit function, ensuring

compliance of internal control systems and
reviewing the Company’s financial and risk
management policies.
z

Recommending the appointment and removal
of statutory auditors, fixation of audit fees and
also to approve payment of other services.

z

Reviewing the reports furnished by the internal
auditors and statutory auditors and ensures
suitable follow-up thereon.

4.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference
The broad terms of reference of the Committee are
to appraise the performance of Managing/
Executive Directors, determine and recommend to
the Board, Compensation payable to Managing/
Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee of the Company as
on 31st March, 2007 comprised of the following three
Directors of the Company :

The Audit Committee while reviewing the Annual
Financial Statements also reviewed the applicability
of various Accounting Standards (AS) issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Compliance of the Accounting Standards as
applicable to the Company has been ensured in the
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,
2007.

Mr. B. N. Singh

Chairman

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

Member

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

Member

During the financial year, Four Remuneration
Committee meetings were held on
28th April, 2006

30th June, 2006

Composition and Attendance

25th November, 2006

16th January, 2007

The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance
with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and the Companies Act, 1956. All the
Members of Audit Committee possess knowledge
of corporate finance, accounts and company law.

Attendance of Members at the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee held during 2006-07:

During the financial year 2006-07, Five Audit
Committee Meetings were held as under:

Mr. B. N. Singh

Members

Meetings held
No. of
during the
meetings
tenure of Directors attended
4

3

(Chairman)

z

29th April, 2006

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

4

3

z

30th June, 2006

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

4

4

z

18th July, 2006

z

28th October, 2006

z

16th January, 2007

Remuneration Policy
Subject to the approval of the Board of Directors
and the subsequent approval by the shareholders
at the General Body Meeting and such authorities
as the case may be, remuneration of the managing/
whole–time Directors is fixed by the Remuneration
committee. The remuneration is fixed considering
various factors such as qualification, experience,
expertise, prevailing remuneration in the competitive
industries, financial position of the company, etc.
The remuneration structure comprises basic salary,
commission, perquisites and allowances,
contribution to provident fund and other funds in
accordance with various related provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.

The Audit Committee as on 31 st March, 2007
comprises of three Non-executive Directors,
namely:
Mr. P. K. Mandloi

Chairman

Independent

Mr. B. N. Singh

Member

Independent

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

Member

Independent

Attendance of Members at the meetings of the Audit
Committee held during the year 2006-07:
Members

Total no.
of meetings

No. of
meetings
attended

Mr. P. K. Mandloi
(Chairman)

5

5

Mr. B. N. Singh

5

4

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

5

5

The remuneration policy for whole-time Director is
directed towards rewarding performance, based on
review of achievements. The non-executive Directors
have not drawn any remuneration from the
Company except sitting fees for meetings of the
Board. The Board, on the recommendations of the
Remuneration committee approves the annual
increments. The Board fixes a ceiling on perquisites
and allowances as a percentage of salary, within
the prescribed ceiling, the perquisite package is
recommended by the Remuneration committee.

Mr. Vikas Tulsiani, Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary to the Committee.
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Details of remuneration paid to the Directors during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2007.
Director

Position

Sitting Fees
(in Rs.)

Salaries and other Perquisites
(in Rs.)

Mr. R. C. Garg

Chairman

25,000

14,05,679

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal
Mr. G. P. Garg

Managing Director

-

6,33,900

Ex-Managing Director

-

5,44,960

Mr. Sourabh Garg

Executive Director

-

7,61,829

Mr. P. R. Srinivasan

Nominee Director

-

-

Mr. R. Ganesh

Executive Director

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

Director

75,000

-

3,15,982
-

Mr. B. N. Singh

Director

75,000

-

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

Director

80,000

-

Notes:
a.

The salary and perquisites include all fixed elements of remuneration i.e. salary and other allowance and
benefits as per the terms and conditions of appointment.

b.

The company has not entered in to any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the non-executive
directors.

c.

The company does not pay any performance linked incentives to the directors.

d.

The compensation paid to non-executive directors including independent directors is within the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956, therefore requirement of prior approval of shareholder shall
not apply.

e.

The company has so far not issued any stock options.

Details of Service Contracts
Names

Date of last
appointment

Current tenure

From

1. Mr. R. C. Garg

30th June, 2006

5 years

01st July, 2006

30th June, 2011

2. Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

25th Nov., 2006

5 years

25th Nov., 2006

24th Nov., 2011

3. Mr. Sourabh Garg

30 June, 2006

5 years

01 June, 2007

31st May, 2012

4. Mr. R. Ganesh

16th Jan., 2007

5 years

16th Jan., 2007

15th Jan., 2012

th

To

st

For any termination of service contract, the Company and the executive director are required to give a notice of
six months or three months as per the terms and conditions of contract or such shorter notice as may be
mutually agreed by them or in lieu of notice, payment by the Company or by executive director to the Company,
equivalent to six months or three months, as the case may be, last drawn remuneration.
Details of shareholding of Non-Executive Directors
Name

No. of shares held

Mr. P. R. Srinivasan

-

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

-

Mr. B. N. Singh

-

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

-
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5.

Members

SHAREHOLDERS’/ INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES
COMMITTEE
The Company has a Shareholders’/ Investors’
Grievance Committee, to look into redressal of
Investors’ Complaints and requests such as delay
in transfer of shares, non receipt of Dividend, Annual
Report, revalidation of Dividend Warrants, etc.

Transfer/ transmission/ transposition of shares;

z

Issue of share certificates for lost, sub - divided,
consolidated, rematerialized, defaced, etc;

z

Consolidation/ Splitting of folios;

z

Review of shares dematerialized and all other
related matters;

z

Investors’ grievances and redressal mechanism
and recommend measures to improve the level
of Investor services.

30 May, 2006,

15th Dec., 2006,

15 June, 2006,

30th Dec., 2006,

30th June, 2006,

15th Jan., 2007,

15 July, 2006,

30th Jan., 2007,

29 July, 2006,

15th Feb., 2007,

16 August, 2006,

22nd Feb., 2007,

11th Sept., 2006,

28th Feb., 2007,

30 Sept., 2006,

15th March, 2007,

30 Oct., 2006,

30th March, 2007.

th

th
th
th

th
th

Mr. R. C. Garg

22

22

9

9

Mr. Sourabh Garg

22

21

Mr. G. P. Garg

13

11

Mr. Vikas Tulsiani, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee.

The quorum for functioning of the Committee is
any two directors present. Twenty-Two meetings
of the Committee were held during the year. The
meetings were held on: 15th April, 2006,
23rd Nov., 2006,

9

The total number of complaints received and replied
to the satisfaction of shareholders during the year
under review was 97. There were no complaints
pending as on 31st March, 2007, that has not been
resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders nor
is there any pending transfer.

Composition and Attendance

th

17

The present composition of the Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee comprises Mr. P.
K. Mandloi, Non-Executive Director, Mr. Sanjay
Agarwal, Managing Director and Mr. Sourabh Garg,
Executive Director.

The Share Department of the Company and the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent’s Ankit
Consultancy Pvt. Ltd., Indore, attends all
grievances/ correspondences expeditiously of the
shareholders and investors, received directly or
through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Department of
Company Affairs, Registrar of Companies, etc.,
usually a reply is sent within 15 days of receipt of
letter, except in the cases that are constrained by
dispute or legal impediment.

8th May, 2006,

Mr. P. K. Mandloi
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

The Committee meets at least once in a fortnight
and deals with various matters relating to:
z

Meetings held
No. of
during the tenure meetings
of Directors
attended

15th Nov., 2006,
The minutes of the Shareholders’/ Investors’
Grievances Committee are noted by the Board of
Directors at the Board Meetings.

Attendance of members at the meeting of the
Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievances Committee
held during the year 2006-2007:
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6.

GENERAL BODY MEETING
Details of the General Meetings held and special resolution passed in the last three years:
Year

Date

Day

Location of the

Time

Details of Special Resolution

4 P.M.

1. Variation in the terms of
appointment of Managing
Director.

Meeting
I Annual General Meeting
2003-04

25th Sept., 2004

2004-05

30 Sept., 2005

Saturday T. R. Puram,
A. B.Road,
Morena - 476 001
(M.P.)

th

Friday

2. Re-issue of forfeited shares

Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
(M. P.)
(Registered Office)

4 P.M.

1. Amendment of
Memorandum of Association
consequent to increase in
authorized capital.
2. Amendment of Articles of
Association consequent to
increase in authorized capital

2005-06

29th July, 2006

Saturday Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
(M. P.)
(Registered Office)

4 P.M.

1. Amendment of Memorandum
of Association consequent to
increase in authorized capital
from Rs. 15 Crores to Rs. 30 Crores
2. Amendment of Articles of
Association consequent to
increase in authorized capital.
3. Approval of Members for
voluntary delisting of equity
shares of the Company from the
Madhya Pradesh Stock Exchange.
4. Issue of 1:1 Bonus shares.
5. Approval of member for issuance
of 9,00,000 Equity Shares on
Preferential basis.
6. Approval for re-issue of 1,07,100
equity Shares.

II Extra Ordinary General Meeting
2004-05

29th Jan., 2005

Saturday Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
(M.P.)
(Registered Office)

11 A. M. 1. Alteration in the articles of
association for incorporating
enabling provisions to issue
Convertible securities.

2006-07

15th Sept., 2006

Friday

Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
(M.P.)
(Registered Office)

11 A. M. 1. Approval for further issuance
of securities.
2. Increase in Limits of Investment
in the Company by FIIs & NRIs.

12th Dec., 2006

Tuesday

Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
(M.P.)
(Registered Office)

11 A. M. 1. Issuance of 32,91,656 Equity
Shares on Preferential basis.
2. Issuance of 17,08,344
warrants on Preferential basis.

2. Issuance of warrants.

6th March, 2007

Tuesday

Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
(M.P.)
(Registered Office)
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3. Issuance of 23,00,000 warrants
on Preferential basis.
11 A. M. 1. Alteration of Articles of
Association.

POSTAL BALLOT
During the year, a Special Resolution was passed through Postal Ballots, related to Amendment in the main
object clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company. The results were announced on 6th March,
2007. Mr. D. K. Jain, Practising Company Secretary was appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal
Ballot Process. The above Special Resolution has been passed with the requisite majority as per the following
details:
Total no. of
Postal Ballot
Received
412

Total No. of
Shares for which
postal ballot
received

No. of
Valid Postal
Ballot

No. of Shares
for the Valid
Postal Ballot

No. of Postal
Ballot
Rejected

No. of Share
for which
postal ballot
rejected

1,17,31,084

373

1,16,98,194

39

32,890

90.53%

99.72%

9.47%

0.28%

Total
Results of the Postal Ballot was as follows:
SUBJECT
Special Resolution for alteration in the main
object Clause for insertion of new clause.

DISSENT
(No. of Shares)

1,16,98,194

0

100.00%

0

The Company has complied with the procedure
for passing of above resolution through Postal
Ballot in terms of the Companies (Passing of
Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules 2001 and any
amendment thereto.

b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
In the preparation of financial statements, the
company has followed the Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India to the extent applicable.

The Board does not recommend any Special
Resolution for approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting through Postal
Ballot process.

c) Disclosure on Risk Management
The Company has laid down procedure to
inform Board members about the risk assessment
and minimization procedure. These would be
periodically reviewed to ensure that executive

Code of conduct
The Code of conduct for the Directors and the senior
management of the Company have been laid down
by the Board and the same is posted on the website
of the Company. All board members and senior
management personnel have affirmed their
compliance with the code. A declaration to this
effect signed by the Managing Director of the
company is annexed to the corporate governance
Report.
7.

ASSENT
(No. of Shares)

management controls risks through means
of a properly defined framework.
d) Utilization of proceeds from the
Preferential Issue of Equity Shares and
Convertible Warrants
During the year under review the company
has raised Rs. 81,90,95,580 through issue
and allotment of Equity Shares and Rs.
23,77,50,192 through issue and allotment
of warrants, on preferential basis as
detailed below:

COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER MANDATORY
REQUIREMENTS
I
II

Subsidiary Companies
There is no subsidiary of the Company.

A.

Equity Share:
1. 41,91,656 Equity shares on
preferential basis.

Disclosures
a) Related Party Transactions
During the year there were no materially
significant transactions of the Company, with
its promoters, the directors or the
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives,
etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large.

2. Re-issue of 1,07,100 forfeited
Equity Shares.

The details of all transactions if any, with
related parties are placed before the audit
committee on quarterly basis.
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B. Warrants convertible in to the equal
number of Equity Shares within 18
months from the date of allotment:
1. 23,00,000 Promoters warrantsto
the promoters and

8.

2. 17,08,344 Investors warrants to
Citigroup
Venture
Capit
International Growth Partnership
Mauritius Limited and Others.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
z

The quarterly financial results of the Company
are published in The Economic Times, Business
Standard, Nav Bharat Times (Hindi Edition) and
Dainik Bhaskar (Hindi Edition) as well as regularly
intimates un-audited and audited financial
results to the Stock Exchanges immediately after
these are taken on record by the Board.

z

The Company’s financial results and official
news releases are displayed on the Company’s
website www.ksoils.com

z

The media releases on significant developments
in the Company as also presentations that have
been made from time to time to the press are
hosted on the Company’s website.

z

As the Company’s quarterly financial results are
published in press and also posted on its Website,
the same are not mailed to the shareholders.

Utilization of proceeds received on
preferential issue of securities:
The aggregate of the total proceeds received
till 31st March, 2007 from issue and allotment
of securities on preferential basis were Rs.
10,568.46 lacs. The amount utilized till 31st
March, 2007 was fully utilized for the
purposes stated in the notice convening the
General Meeting held for purpose of passing
Special Resolution u/s 81(1A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, such as organic
growth, acquisitions, additional working
capital and capital expenditure. The
company periodically placed before the Audit
Committee a Receipts and Utilization
statement of proceeds raised through the
allotment of securities on preferential basis.

9.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
Registered Office

: Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena - 476 001,
M. P.
: +91 7532 300000
: +91 7532 405060
: investors@ksoils.com
: www.ksoils.com

Phone
Fax
Email
Website

e) Issue of Bonus Shares
During the year the company has successfully
completed the maiden bonus issue of
94,00,000 equity shares by allotting one share
for every one share held by capitalization of
Rs. 940 lacs.

Annual General Meeting:

f) Management Discussion and Analysis
A Management Discussion and Analysis
Report is given separately in the Annual
Report.

Date
Time

: 23rd June, 2007
: 4:00 PM

Venue

: T. R. Puram,
A. B. Road,
Morena - 476 001,
M.P.

Financial Calendar (tentative):

g) CEO/ CFO Certification
A certificate from Chairman and Managing
Director and Finance Head on the financial
statements of the Company was placed
before the Board.
h) Statutory Compliance, Penalties and
Strictures
The Company has complied with all
requirements of the Listing Agreements
entered into with the Stock Exchanges as well
as the regulations and guidelines of SEBI,
Consequently, there were no strictures or
penalties imposed by either SEBI or the Stock
Exchanges or any statutory authority for
non-compliance of any matter related to the
capital markets during the last three years.

Adoption of
Quarterly Results
Ended:

In the Month of

30th June, 2007

July, 2007 (3rd/ 4th week)

30th Sept., 2007

Oct., 2007 (3rd/ 4th week)

31st Dec., 2007

Jan., 2008 (3rd/ 4th week)

31st March, 2008
(Un-audited
Annual Accounts)

April, 2008 (3rd/ 4th week)

Date of Book Closure:
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books
of the Company will remain closed from 19th June,
2007 to 23rd June, 2007 (both days inclusive).
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Dividend:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Dividend of Rs. 1.50/- per Equity Share will be
payable on or after 30th June, 2007 subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd,
2nd Floor, Alankar Point, 4 A Rajgarh Kothi,
Gita Bhawan Chouraha, Indore 452 001 (M.P.)
Tel. : +91 731 2491298, 2495226
Fax : +91 731 4065798
Email: ankitind@sancharnet.in
Time: 10.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m.

Listing on Stock Exchanges:
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on
the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and the National
Stock Exchange of India Ltd. The Company has
paid the Annual Listing fee to both the BSE and
the NSE for the year 2007-08. The Stock Codes/
Symbols are:
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

:

526209

National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd.

:

KSOILS

International Securities
Identification Number (ISIN)

:

INE727D01014

Share Transfer System:
Share transfers in physical form are registered by
the Registrars and returned to the respective
transferee within a period from two to three weeks,
provided the documents lodged with the
Registrars/ Company are clear in all respects. In
case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are
processed by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) through respective
Depository Participants. In compliance with the
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a
practicing Company Secretary audits the system
of Transfer and a Certificate to that effect is issued.

Market Price Data:
Monthly Highs and Lows for FY 2006-2007 at BSE
Month

K. S. Oils
(High)

K. S. Oils
(Low)

April - 06

285.25

205.00

50,40,356

May - 06

321.35

227.00

33,55,678

June - 06

261.80

135.45

12,08,196

July - 06

219.00

146.20

25,46,263

August - 06

258.90

165.00

59,32,833

September - 06

255.00

120.55

1,13,13,323

October - 06

184.40

142.00

71,26,334

November - 06

227.70

166.00

1,50,65,858

December - 06

244.00

177.20

1,11,10,764

January - 07

360.00

217.50

1,38,88,792

February - 07

354.00

255.80

58,45,844

March - 07

307.70

198.60

69,34,934
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Volume
(No. of Shares)

K. S. Oils Shares Price versus the BSE Sensex.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2007:
No. of Equity
Shares

No. of
Shareholders

Percentage of
shareholders

No. of
Shares Held

Percentage of
Shareholding

7,683

93.40%

14,76,047

6.68%

1,001 to 2,000

234

2.84%

3,76,813

1.71%

2,001 to 3,000

59

0.72%

1,48,391

0.67%

3,001 to 4,000

39

0.47%

1,39,096

0.63%

4,001 to 5,000

30

0.36%

1,39,435

0.63%

Up to 1,000

5,001 to 10,000
10,001 and above
Total

69

0.84%

5,18,910

2.35%

113

1.37%

1,92,92,964

87.33%

8,227

100.00%

2,20,91,656

100.00%
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Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2007:
Category

No. of Shares held

% of Share Capital

64,83,775

29.35%

A. PROMOTER’S HOLDING
1

Promoters
Indian Promoters

2

Foreign promoters

-

-

Person acting in concert

-

-

64,83,775

29.35%

Sub-Total
B.

NON-PROMOTER’S HOLDING
3

Institutional Investors
a.

Mutual Funds and UTI

-

b.

Banks, Financial Institutions,
Insurance Companies (Central/
State Government Institutions/
Non Government Institutions)

c.

Foreign Institutional Investors

1,200

0.00%

27,60,887

12.50%

27,62,087

12.50%

No. of Shares held

% of Share Capital

Private Corporate Bodies

17,08,955

7.74%

b.

Indian Public

78,27,932

35.43%

c.

Any Other –
35,541

0.16%

32,73,366

14.82%

Sub-Total

1,28,45,794

58.15%

Grand Total

2,20,91,656

100.00%

Sub-Total
Category
4

-

OTHERS
a.

1. NRIs
2. Foreign Corporate Bodies

Dematerialisation of Shares:
The trading in Company’s shares is permitted only in dematerialised form. In order to enable the shareholders
to hold their shares in D-mat form, the Company has enlisted its shares with National Securities Depositories
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
Status of De-materialization as on 31st March, 2007:
No. of Shares Dematerialized

1,62,92,414

73.75% of the total share capital

No. of Shareholders in D’mat form

6,436

78.23% of the total no. of shareholders

Outstanding Securities:
The members of the Company accorded their approval at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 12th
December, 2006 by passing a Special Resolution and on receipt of 10% of the value i.e. Rs. 3,07,50,192 the Board
of Directors allotted 17,08,344 Warrants (Investor Warrants) of Rs. 180/- each to the Citigroup Venture Capital
International Growth Partnership Mauritius Limited and others, and 23,00,000 Warrants (Promoters Warrants)
of Rs. 180/- each allotted on receipt of 50% of the value i.e. Rs. 20,70,00,000/- to Promoters, the aforesaid
warrants carrying a right to subscribe to equal number of equity shares within a period of 18 months from the
date of allotment at a price of Rs. 180/- each, convertible into equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of
Rs. 170/- per equity shares.
On conversion of these warrants the paid up capital of the Company will enhance by Rs. 4,00,83,440/-

58

Plant Location of the Company:
The Company has manufacturing facilities at:
1.

A. B. Road, Industrial Area,
Morena – 476 001
Madhya Pradesh
Tel. : +91 7532 304000
Fax : +91 7532 304312
Email: works@ksoils.com

2.

Plot No. 361/2, Village Kakani
Pali Road, Jodhpur,
Rajasthan

3.

Plot No. 4, Matsya Industrial Area,
Alwar, Rajasthan

Address for Correspondence:
Shareholders are requested to contactMr. Vikas Tulsiani
Company Secretary,
K. S. Oils Limited
Jiwaji Ganj, Morena - 476 001, M. P.
Tel. : +91 7532 300000
Fax : +91 7532 405060
Email: investors@ksoils.com
Website: www.ksoils.com
10.

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS
1.

Remuneration Committee
The Company has constituted Remuneration Committee details whereof are given at Sr. No. 4 of this
report.

2.

Shareholder Rights
The quarterly financial results are published in the newspapers as mentioned under the heading “Means of
Communication” at Sr. No. 8 herein above and also displayed on the website of the Company. The results
are not separately circulated to the shareholders.

Declaration by Managing Director
I, Sanjay Agarwal, Managing Director of K. S. Oils Limited, hereby confirm that all the Board members
and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the year ended
31st March, 2007.

Palace : Morena
Date : 24th May, 2007

Sanjay Agarwal
Managing Director
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Management
Discussion
Analysis

K. S. Oils Limited has had a very successful
business year 2006-07; while the financial goals of
the company has been met with a great sense of
achievement, the company has made rapid strides
in the areas of general management and
performance. The company has re-asserted its
leadership position in the mustard oil segment
and has met the twin goals set in the beginning of
the year – increase profitability and make its
presence felt in newer geographies.

Certain recent statistics are mind boggling and at the
same time, is the Great India Opportunity that we
strongly believe in – India today has a population of
1,027 million which resides in 5,545 towns and
6,38,000 villages having 2.5 million and 5.0 million
retail outlets respectively.

The company has been able to create presence in two
very important markets – East & North India, while
maintaining its market dominance in North East India.
It is the largest processor of Mustard/ Rape seed in
India. The company has set up operations in Rajasthan
along with its manufacturing facility in Morena,
Madhya Pradesh, one of the most fertile mustard seed
growing area as also a key commodity nerve center.

This retail opportunity is waiting to be tapped; the
surging middle class, growth of the IT/ ITES sector has
given rise to a totally new breed of ‘spending’ class for
whom upgrading the lifestyle is most important. Thus,
from a nation of savers, India for the next decade or so
will be the nation of spenders. There has been shift
towards spending habits and attitude – from a
customer who was value conscious, a new consumer is
being born who wants to rise in the value chain and is
ready to pay a premium for it. Products and brands
addressing this new consumer segment will surge ahead
in market share, mind share and profitability. Today
Indian consumer confidence is highest in the world
which shows the spending opportunity.

K. S. Oils today is one of the leading suppliers of edible
oils to the Indian Defense forces and this tradition has
been long maintained for the past few years.
The company has made a concerted effort to move
itself from a mustard oil producing company to a
leading market focused FMCG led brand company.
The opportunity in the Indian markets is huge –
statistics show that 6 northern states of India consume
90% of the mustard oil produced in the country. This
throws up an opportunity of over 50 crore customers.

Today India accounts for 7% of the global oilseeds and
oil meal production and 10% of the world’s
consumption of edible oil. With the edible oil market
size being at Rs. 675 billion and the branded segment
having 15% market share, the opportunity is huge.
Also, with modern retail formats being just 3%, the
penetration opportunity is mind boggling!

Industry Overview
India today is the only country which has retail led
growth left in the world, may be, along with China. This
retail and mall culture in the country poses a huge
opportunity to the whole edible oil sector. A study by
NCAER shows a major shift in the consuming class;
while in 2003, India had 181 million households of
which only 3 million were in the Rich bracket and 46
million as Aspirers, by 2013 India will have 231 million
households out of which 11 million would be Rich and
124 million Aspirers! Thus the shape of India is going
to change in the next 5 years – from being just a
pyramid to a sparkling Diamond.

Lastly, with an improvement in the lifestyle of the
Indian consumer, healthy living will be a priority which
will create an immense opportunity for edible oil
sector. A latest report from FICCI suggest that the
branded edible oils market is expected to grow at 20%
per annum, which will not only spur the demand for
edible oils but will drive demand towards branded and
organized edible oil players.
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Business Direction
K. S. Oils has had a fantastic year in 2006-07 and we
have taken certain strategic steps to ensure that the
company is able to become a national level player in the
next few years. This year the company clocked a
turnover over 79% over the past one year and profitability
increased by 278% in the current year.

and products. This has helped us to create a brand led
product focus and strengthen our brands Double Sher,
Kalash, K S Refined and K S Gold in the minds of the
consumer. Today we are a quick turnaround company
which is investing heavily in building brands and
customer experiences.
Opportunities & Threats
The new age Indian consumer, the organized retail
potential which is creating the huge consumption
opportunity is by far the biggest Opportunity for
companies like us. With the aspirational and rich
class in India having a better penetration, our retail
and brand led growth will help the company in both
the immediate and long run. Also, with the rural
India being revisited by marketers through the
modern retail (haat) philosophy, the opportunity is
huge.

Two very clear cut strategies worked for the company
which will be the focus in the times to come; increased
margins through retail led sales and entering into newer
markets like North and East India. The company
completely re-vamped the way it did business and
some of the key measures are discussed as below:
Retail led manufacturing strategy
The company has followed a very successful retail led
manufacturing strategy whereby special emphasis was
laid in production of retail packs, packaging and
quality. This retail thrust has helped the company
increase profitability substantially and today retail
sales contribute 20% of the total sales of the company
which will increase in the coming years.

India is also seeing a great increase in life style led
diseases like heart ailments and cardio vascular illness
which is said to rise much higher than other nations;
this creates a potential for healthy edible oil and
mustard being one of the world’s most heart friendly
oil, consumers will be eager to adapt to branded and
quality led mustard oil brands.

New market Strategy – Acquisition of Business &
Customers
During the current year, our acquisition strategy on two
fronts were very strategic – we created manufacturing
facility in North India by acquiring one facilitiy and one
leased in Rajasthan which was strategic in the
procurement of Mustard seeds and to reaching out to
newer markets in North and East India. This has helped
up ramp up production and helped us acquire
customers and market share in these two new markets;
also, a significant shift has been in the increased retail
sales in the new geographies.

Competition from Indian and global players remain a
matter of concern and probable threat; while the
company is well prepared to tackle such issues on an
ongoing basis, K. S. Oils ability towards product
differentiation, value addition and being one of the
most low cost producers will help it address any
threats from competition.
Risks & Concerns
Macro economic & global issues like inflation,
recession, political and social upheavals, inadequate
or more than adequate rainfall, acts of God and
nature will have an effect on the industry as a whole.

Distribution and Marketing set up
Another area which has been our key focus is creating a
strong retail and distribution backbone. The company
today has a strong and well spread distribution network
of over 350 distributors and 35 CDP’s (Central
Distribution Points) which is helping the company reach
out its retail packs to a larger audience in a quick and
efficient manner. The company has a strong team of near
to 100 people in the marketing division which is ensuring
world class logistics support to create a fast and agile
FMCG company.

The company’s key raw material input of mustard
seed and other edible oils are agriculture produce and
procured from domestic and international markets at
competitive prices. These prices vary on factors like
good monsoons, weather conditions, demand &
supply scenario, foreign exchange fluctuations and
government policy both at a domestic and international
level.

Brand led product focus
The current year saw us heavily investing in both
product and consumer R&D – we have put in place
world class standards in R&D for packaging, quality

Along with the above, the company and other industry
players are exposed to foreign exchanges losses
because of crude edible oil imports and rapeseed oil
meal and soya oil meal exports. The commodity risks
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are not significant considering the normal co-relation in
the price of the raw material and finished goods. The
company adopts continuous risk-monitoring system
and hedges its future foreign exchange risks.

people or human resource practices. The company has
completely overhauled its HR practice and through
external help undertaken a human transformation
exercise which is resulting in more employee
satisfaction, positive feedback and helping us create
leaders for tomorrow.

Internal Control Systems & Their Adequacy
K. S. Oils has an established and comprehensive
internal control mechanism and management structure
in place across its all business functions which ensure
that all assets of the company are duly recorded at fair
value as per standard accounting practices and
safeguarded against all and any loss from unauthorized
use or disposition.

K. S. Oils during the year has also attracted few of the
best talent in the country and the company was able to
fill in a number of senior management responsibilities
in HR, Finance, Marketing and Production. The
company is working closely with a leading leadership
consultancy to create a people centric organization.
With renewed focus on training, people development
and compensation, K. S. Oils is well on its way to
attract, retain and grow the best talent in this country.
The company maintained cordial industrial relations
with its employees which yielded the company
improved productivity, quality and overall higher
employee satisfaction and retention.

Internal Control Systems are implemented:
z

To safeguard the company’s assets from loss or
damage.

z

To keep constant check on cost structure and process
loss.

z

To provide adequate financial and accounting
controls and implement standard accounting
standards.

z

To maintain proper accounting records and statutory
compliances.

z

For the appropriate use of company’s funds.

Segment wise performance
The various segments identified by the company are as
under:
Oil & Refinery

- Crude Mustard & Refined Oils

Vanaspati

- Vanaspati Ghee

The systematic implementation of Internal Control
Systems and policies has resulted in the use of funds in
the most efficient and appropriate manner. All this has
been implemented in every area commencing from raw
materials to finished products.

Solvent Extraction - Seed Extraction

Internal Audit Program
The internal audit program, besides, checking the
reliability of financial information also ensures
effectiveness and efficiency of internal control system
and suggests the ways to further strengthen our
internal controls to meet the requirement of growing
business complexities.

Cautionary Statement
Statements made in the Management Discussion and
Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, estimates, expectations maybe “Forwardlooking statements” within the meaning of applicable
securities laws and regulations. Actual result could
differ from those expressed or implied. Important
factors that could make a difference to the Company’s
operations include economic conditions affecting
demand-supply and price conditions in the domestic
and overseas markets in the company operates,
changes in Government Regulations, tax laws and other
statutes and other incidental factors.

Power

- Power Generation (Wind Mills)

The detailed performance segment wise is given in
schedule ‘N’ to the audited accounts of the company as
provided in the Annual Report.

Human Resources & Industrial Relations
At K. S. Oils people are a key to business especially in
the knowledge era; we have moved ahead of the
manufacturing mindset and well on our way to create
one of the finest organizations in the country – be it
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Auditors’
Report
To the Members of K. S. Oils Limited

W

e have audited the attached Balance Sheet of
K. S. Oils Limited as at 31st March, 2007, the
Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the
company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the
auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
We report as follows :
1.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of
the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the
Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.
Further to our comments in the Annexure referred
to in Paragraph 1 above, we report that:
(a)

(b)

We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

(c)

The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statements dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d)

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Account and Cash Flow statement dealt
with by this report comply with the accounting
standards referred to in section 211(3C) of
the Companies Act, 1956;

(e)

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors, as on 31st March,
2007 and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, we report that none of the Directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2007 from
being appointed as a director in terms of
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of
the Companies Act, 1956;

(f)

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us, the said accounts read together
with notes thereon give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the
manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India;
(a)

in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2007;

(b)

in the case of Profit and Loss Account,
of the ‘Profit’ for the year ended on that
date; and

(c)

in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of
the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
company so far, as appears from our
examination of those books;

Place : Gwalior
Dated: 24th May, 2007
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R. S. Rathi
(Partner)
M.No.12121

Annexure refer to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
(i)

(ii)

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)

As explained to us, most of the fixed assets
have been physically verified by the
management during the year in a phased
periodical manner, which in our opinion is
reasonable, having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

(c)

In our opinion, the company has not disposed
of substantial part of fixed assets during the
year and the going concern status of the
company is not affected.

(a)

As explained to us, Inventories have been
physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our
opinion the frequency of such verification is
reasonable.

(b)

In our opinion, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the
nature of its business.

(c)

The company has maintained proper records
of inventories. As explained to us, there were
no material discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to the
book records.

(iii) (a)

The company had taken loan from the parties
covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.The
maximum amount involved during the year
was Rs. 859.32 lacs and the year end balance
of loan taken from such parties was Nil. The
company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firm or other
parties covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(b)

In our opinion, the rate of interest and other
terms and conditions on which loans have
been taken from companies, firm or other
parties covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest
of the company.

(c)

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size
of the company and the nature of its business, for
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for
the sale of goods and services. To the best of our
knowledge, no major weaknesses in internal control
were either reported or noticed by us during the
course of our audit.
(v)

(a)

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of contract
or arrangements, that needed to be entered
into the register maintained under section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956 have been so
entered.

(b)

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
transaction of purchase of goods and material
and sale of goods, material and services made
in pursuance of contract or arrangement
entered in the register maintained under
section 301 and aggregating during the year
to Rs. 5,00,000 (Rs. Five lacs) or more in
respect of each party have been made at prices
which are reasonable having regard to the
prevailing market prices for such goods,
material and services as the prices at which
transactions for similar goods, material and
services have been made with other parties.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits during the year, hence the
provisions of Sec.58A and 58AA or any other relevant
provision and the rules made there under with regard
to deposit does not apply to the company. We have
been informed by the company that no order has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any court or any other tribunal.
(vii) The company has an ‘Internal Audit System’
carried through a firm of Chartered Accountants.
In our opinion, the scope and coverage of audit
needs to be strengthned to be commensurate with
its size and nature of its business.
(viii)The Central Government has prescribed maintenance
of Cost records under section 209(1)(d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 in respect of company’s
‘Vanaspati, Refined Vegetable Oil and Power
Generation’. We have broadly reviewed the accounts
and records of the company in this connection and
are of the opinion, that prima facie, the prescribed

The company is regular in repaying the
principal amounts as stipulated and has been
regular in the payment of interest.
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accounts and records have been made and
maintained, though the contents of these accounts
have not been examined by us with a view to
determine there accuracy and completeness.
(ix) (a)

(x)

explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid
dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 07
for a period of more than six months from the
date of becoming payable.

According to the records of the company,
undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service
tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and
other statutory dues have been generally
regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and

(b)

According to the information and
explanations given to us and record of the
company examined by us the disputed
statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 95.27 lacs,
that have not been deposited on account of
matters pending before appropriate
authorities are as under:

Sr. No.

Name of the Statue

Nature of Dues

Forum where dispute
is pending

1)

Sales Tax Act

Sales/ Commercial/
Entry Tax

Deputy/Additional,
Commissioner, Sales Tax

2)

Central Excise and
Custom Act

Excise Duty with
Interest and Penalty

CESTAT, Delhi

Excise Duty

Settlement Commission

36.18

Excise Duty with
Interest and Penalty

Appellate Tribunal
Central Excise, Gwalior

0.31

The company has no accumulated losses as at 31st
March, 2007 and it has not incurred any cash losses
in the financial year ended on that date or in
immediately preceding financial year.

Amount
Rs. in lacs
56.36
2.42

(xvii)According to the information and explanations
given to us and on an overall examination of the
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement of the
company, we report that short term funds have
not been used for long-term investment.

(xi) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or
banks. The company has not issued any debentures.

(xviii)The company has made allotment of equity shares
and share warrants convertible into equity shares at
a later date on preferential basis. Such preferential
allotments were made to persons including persons
covered in the register maintained under section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956. The equity shares and
share warrants convertible into equity shares issued
have been priced in accordance with guidelines issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and
accordingly, are not prejudicial to the interests of the
company.

(xii) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not granted loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of
pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
(xiii) In our opinion, the company is not a Chit Fund or
a Nidhi/ Mutual Benefit Fund/ Society. Therefore,
clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2003 is not applicable to the company.

(xix) The company has no secured debentures
outstanding and accordingly clause 4 (xix) of the
said order is not applicable.

(xiv) In our opinion, the company is not dealing or
trading in shares, securities, debentures and other
investments. Accordingly the provisions of clause
4 (xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 are not applicable to the company.

(xx) The company has not raised any money through
public issue during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or
financial institutions.

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the
company has been noticed or reported during the
year, during the course of our audit.

(xvi) In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, on an overall basis
the Term loans have been applied for the purpose
for which they were raised.

Place: Gwalior
Dated: 24th May, 2007

For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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R. S. Rathi
(Partner)
M.No.12121

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Schedule

Current Year

Previous Year

2,209

845

Sources of Funds
Shareholders Funds
Share Capital

A

Equity Share Entitlement Warrants
Reserves & Surplus

B

Deferred Government Grant

2,378

0

14,342

3,726

99

105

Loans Funds
Secured Loans

C

8,518

7,877

Unsecured Loans

D

1,501

859

N

1,557

0

30,604

13,412

Deferred Tax Liability
(Refer Notes to Accounts - Point No.21)
Total

Application of Funds
Fixed Assets
Gross Block

E

Less : Depreciation
Net Block
Capital work in progress

E

Current Assets, Loans & Advances

13,779

5,973

2,029

1,590

11,750

4,383

1,352

0

F

Inventories

24,769

15,522

Sundry Debtors

1,391

1,541

Cash & Bank Balances

1,306

608

2

30

Other Current Assets
Loans & Advances

4,874

537

32,342

18,238

12,724

8,753

Less:
Current Liabilities & Provisions

G

Current Liabilities
Provisions
Net Current Assets (F-G)
Miscellaneous Expenditure

2,353

456

15,077

9,209

17,265

9,029

237

0

30,604

13,412

(Project Expenses to be amortised)
Total
Significant Accounting Policies,
Contingent Liabilities & Notes to the Accounts

N

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
R. S. Rathi
Sanjay Agarwal
Ramesh Chand Garg
Partner
(Managing Director)
(Chairman)
M. No. 12121
Place : Gwalior
V. Tulsiani
Dated : 24th May, 2007
(Company Secretary)
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Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Schedule

Current Year

Previous Year

1,02,252

56,265

38

2

1,02,214

56,263

6,533

4,555

1,08,747

60,818

107

44

1,08,854

60,862

Income
Sales
Domestic Sales
Less: Excise Duty
Export Sales
Other Income
Total

Expenditure
Raw Material & Purchases

H

89,370

55,166

Manufacturing Expenses

I

3,309

2,512

Selling Expenses

J

2,375

1,381

Administrative & Other Expenses

K

1,542

1,307

96,596

60,366

Add: Opening Stock

L

10,726

8,462

Less: Closing Stock

M

1,07,322

68,828

7,843

10,726

99,479

58,102

Operating Profit

9,375

2,760

Interest

1,535

715

452

285

Profit before Taxation

7,388

1,760

Provision for Taxation

1,650

243

Depreciation on Fixed Assets

Income Tax on Assessment

6

0

Profit After Taxation

5,732

1,517

Balance brought forward from Previous Year

2,198

845

Amount available for appropriation

7,930

2,362

Dividend Interim
Final (Proposed)
Tax on Dividend
Transfer to General Reserve
Surplus carried forward

0
331
56
500
7,043

101
0
14
50
2,197

Total

7,930

2,362

30

9

Appropriations

Earning Per Share (Rs.)
Basic/Diluted

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
R. S. Rathi
Partner
M. No. 12121
Place : Gwalior
Dated : 24th May, 2007

Sanjay Agarwal
(Managing Director)

Ramesh Chand Garg
(Chairman)

V. Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)
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Cash Flow Statement annexed to the Balance Sheet for The Year Ended 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

A

Adjustment For:
Depreciation
Depreciation on Government Grant
Profit/Loss on sale of assets
Interest received
Interest paid
Provision for taxation
Income Tax Paid for Previous years
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustment For:
Trade & Other Receivables
Inventories
Trade Payables & Provisions
Cash Generated from Operations

C

Previous Year

7,388

1,760

452
(6)
0
(31)
1,535
(1650)
(6)

285
(6)
(1)
(26)
715
(243)
(16)

7,682

2,468

(4,159)
(9,247)
5,055

8
(4,078)
1,533

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax & Extraordinary Item

B

Current Year

(669)

(69)

Interest paid

(1,535)

(715)

Cash Flow before extraordinary items

(2,204)

(784)

Net Cash from Operating Activities

(2,204)

(784)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
(Net of Creditors for Capital Goods)
Sale of Fixed Assets
Capital WIP
Interest received
Subsidy Received
Sale of Investment

(7,469)

(533)

20
(1,352)
31
0
0

5
0
26
0
0

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

(8,770)

(502)

Proceed from issue of share capital/premium
Proceed from Long term borrowing
Dividend Paid
Unsecured Loans
Miscelleaneous Expenses Carried forward

10,569
813
(115)
642
(237)

656
(280)
(56)
859
0

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

11,672

1,179

698

(107)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent

608

715

1,306

608

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
R. S. Rathi
Sanjay Agarwal
Ramesh Chand Garg
Partner
(Managing Director)
(Chairman)
M. No. 12121
Place : Gwalior
V. Tulsiani
Dated : 24th May, 2007
(Company Secretary)
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

3,000

1,500

2,209

839

0

6

2,209

845

17

11

7,761

810

1,078

708

5,486

2,197

14,342

3,726

Schedule A
Share Capital
Authorised
3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(Previous Year 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
2,20,91,656 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(Previous Year 83,92,900 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
Shares Forfeited
(Amount paid up on 1,07,100 shares)
Balance as per last year

6

Less : Amount transferred to Capital Reserve

6

Of the above following were allotted during the year :
(a)

Re-issue of 1,07,100 Forfeited Equity Shares of Rs. 10/each at a premium of Rs. 170/- each during the year.

(b)

Prefential allotment of 9,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/each at a premium of Rs. 215/- each during the year

(c)

32,91,656 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of
Rs. 170/- each during the year.

(d)

As fully paid bonus shares :
94,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each by capitalisation of
Security Premium Account and General reserve.

Total

Schedule B
Reserves & Surplus
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last year

11

Add: Amount transferred from Share Forfeiture Account

6

Share Premium Account
Balance as per last year

810

Add: Premiun Received during the year

7,761

Less: Share Premium Capitalised for issue of Bonus Shares

810

General Reserve
Balance as per last year

708

Add: Transferred from P. & L. Account

500

Less: General Reserve Capitalised for issue of Bonus Shares

130

Profit & Loss Account
Surplus carried from Profit & Loss Account

7,043

Less: Accumulated Deferred Tax Liability accounted for

1,557

Total
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

1,274

461

7,244

7,416

8,518

7,877

From Banks & others

1,501

859

Total

1,501

859

Schedule C
Secured Loans
From Banks
On Term Loan Account
Secured against mortgage, hypothecation of factory, land,
building, plant & machinery & first charge on all fixed assets
of the company.
On Working Capital Account
Secured against hypothecation of stock of raw material, stock
in process, finished goods, by-products & guaranteed by
directors & Second pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the
company.
Total

Schedule D
Unsecured Loans
Other Loans & Advances

70

71

871

4,474

PREVIOUS YEAR

2.
3.

1.
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

337
196
51
768

5,973

13,779

3,725

556

273

165

176

884

3,912

3,911

111
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Total
as on
31.03.2007

As on
31.03.2006

13

32

0

0

0

32

0

0

0

0

0

0

Sales
during
the
year

As on
31.03.2007

1,512

7,838

2,552

70

127

67

21

391

1,488

3,040

79

3

Addition
during
the
year

Gross Block

1,314

1,590

1

193

95

80

53

142

806

217

0

3

Up to
31.03.2006

285

452

62

26

20

18

20

60

212

33

0

1

Addition
for the
year

9

13

0

0

0

13

0

0

0

0

0

0

Deduction/
Adjustments
during the
year

Depreciation

1,590

2,029

63

219

115

85

73

202

1,018

250

0

4

Total
as on
31.03.2007

4,383

11,750

3,662

337

158

80

103

682

2,894

3,661

111

62

As on
31.03.2007

4,383

1,172

293

51

50

102

351

1,618

654

32

60

As on
31.03.2006

Net Block

(Rs. in lacs)

Total
1,352
Nil
Addition in depreciation of Rs. 452 lacs includes the depreciation of Rs. 5.88 lacs as depreciation on machinery financed by government grant.
In respect of land leasehold acquired at Dewas for windmill during 2005-06, amounting Rs. 20 lacs for which comfort letter is available and lease formalitiies will be completed
in due course as per supplier agreement.

Capital work in progress:
Building
Plant & Machinery
Furniture Fixture
Windmill

Note:

5,973

Grand Total

486

1,173

Utilities

Windmills

130

146

Office Equipment

Furniture & Fixtures

Vehicles

493

155

Electric Installations

2,424

Plant & Machinery

Building

63

32

Land (Freehold)

As on
01.04.2006

Land (Leasehold)

Description
of Assets

Fixed Assets

Schedule E

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2007

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

2

30

16,540
6,337
1,407
99
386

4,297
10,498
147
81
499

24,769

15,522

1,391

1,541

89

50

750
467
1,306

201
357
608

27,468

17,701

2,570
335
115
18
1,097
704
35

165
0
79
19
244
0
30

4,874
32,342

537
18,238

10,804
1,348
170
291
106

4,066
979
3,060
546
99

5
12,724

3
8,753

388
1,965

115
341

2,353
15,077

456
9,209

Schedule F
Current Assets, Loans & Advances
(A) Current Assets
Interest Receivable
Inventories
(As taken valued & certified by Managing Director)
Raw Materials
Finished Goods
By Products
Packing Materials
Stores & Spares
Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for more than six months
Other Debts
Cash & Bank Balances
Cash in Hand
Cash at Bank
On Current Accounts with Sheduled Banks
On Fixed Deposit Accounts (Refer note no.15 of Schedule - N)
Total (A)
(B) Loans & Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
(Advance recoverable in Cash or Kind or for value to be received.)
Advance to Suppliers & Others
Advance for Capital Items
Security Deposits
Sales Tax paid under Appeal
Advance Income Tax & Fringe Benefit Tax
Vat Credit Receivable (Input)
Other Loans & Advances
Total (B)
Grand Total (A+B)

95
1,296

Schedule G
Current Liabilities & Provisions
(A) Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors for Goods & Expenses
Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods
Security Deposit from Suppliers/Customers/CSA
Advance from Customers
Statutory & Other Liabilities
Liability towards Investor Protection and
Education Fund under Sec 205C of the Companies
Act, 1956 (Not Due as on 31.03.2006)
Unclaimed Dividend
Total (A)
(B) Provisions
Proposed Dividend/ Interim (Including Tax on dividend)
Provision for Taxation
Total (B)
Grand Total (A+B)
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Schedules forming part of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

Oil Seed

30,522

15,988

Oil

52,331

34,066

Oil Cake

1,879

2,450

Packing Material

3,010

2,256

Trading Goods/By-Product

1,628

406

89,370

55,166

Coal Consumed

770

672

Chemical Consumed

392

332

Repairs & Maintenance

402

197

Hexane Consumed

226

166

1,134

859

292

204

Other Manufacturing Expenses

34

30

Tin Manufacturing Expenses

59

52

3,309

2,512

1,784

1,038

Schedule H
Raw Material & Purchases

Total

Schedule I
Manufacturing Expenses

Power & Fuel
Wages

Total

Schedule J
Selling Expenses
Transportation, Loading & Unloading
Packing Material

53

37

Brokerage

100

102

Sales Expenses

438

204

2,375

1,381

Total
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Schedules forming part of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

Schedule K
Administrative & Other Expenses
Remuneration Directors
Employees Remuneration & Benefit
Postage, Telegram & Telephone Expenses

36

13

250

110

33

22

Rent, Rates & Taxes

585

649

Bank Commission

142

158

Stationery & Printing Expenses

13

9

Travelling & Conveyance

98

43

Repairs & Maintenance

61

50

Insurance

76

70

Auditors’ Remuneration (Refer note no. “17” of Schedule ‘N’)

9

3

Miscellaneous Expenses

110

29

Consultancy, Legal & Professional Charges

129

36

0

115

1,542

1,307

10,498

7,626

147

660

81

176

10,726

8,462

Finished Goods

6,337

10,498

By Products

1,407

147

99

81

7,843

10,726

Exchange Rate Fluctuation
Total

Schedule L
Opening Stock
Finished Goods
By Products
Packing Materials
Total

Schedule M
Closing Stock
(As taken valued & certified by Managing Director)

Packing Materials
Total
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Schedule N - Notes to Accounts
1.

Significant accounting policies
General
The company follows the Mercantile System of
Accounting and recognizes Income and Expenditure
on accrual basis. The financial statements have been
prepared on the basis of going concern, under the
historic cost convention to comply in all material
aspects with applicable accounting principles in
India, the Accounting standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
Fixed Assets
All the fixed assets are valued at cost less
depreciation. Pre-operation expenses including trial
run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalized.
Interest on borrowing and financial costs during
the period of construction is added to the cost of
fixed assets.
Investments
Long-term investments are valued at cost, less any
diminution in value; i.e., other than temporary. Current
investments are valued at cost.
Inventories
Inventory Valuation
(i)

Raw Material are valued at their historical
costs applying the First - in- First- out (FIFO)
method.

(ii)

Finished Goods, By- Products and Trading
Goods are valued at actual cost or Net
realizable value whichever is lower.

(iii) Packing Materials are valued at cost.
(iv) Stores & Spares are valued at cost.
Revenue Recognition
Sales are recognized on passing of property in
goods i.e. delivery as per terms, consignment sales
is recognized on receipt of Sale Report from
Consignees, at net of Consignment Expenses. Sales
are booked excluding excise duty and VAT.
Inter-unit transfers of goods are shown as contra
items in the Profit and Loss Account to reflect the
true economic value of the production inter-se the
unit which has no impact on the profits of the
Company.
Entitlement in terms of duty-free imports of Rawmaterials, others benefits and duty draw back
against export are being accounted for on
realization basis.
Depreciation
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on
‘Straight Line Method’ except on assets of Oil &

Refinery Division’ where it is provided on “Written
Down Value Method ” at the rates and in the
manner specified in Schedule XIV of the Companies
Act, 1956. Leasehold land is being amortised over
the period of lease.
Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the
respective transactions. Exchange difference arising
on foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account
except the exchange differences related to the
acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the
carrying amount of the related fixed assets.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies as at balance sheet date are
translated at year-end rates. The resultant exchange
difference (except those related to acquisition of
fixed assets) are recognized in the profit and loss
account.
In respect of transactions covered by forward
exchange contracts, the difference between the
forward rate and the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction is recognized as income or expenses
over the life of the contract, except where it relates
to fixed assets in which case it is adjusted in the
cost of corresponding assets.
Retirement Benefits
Contribution to Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund
are charged against revenue. Gratuity liability is
paid to a Trust created for the purpose jointly
with Life Insurance Corporation of India under
Group Gratuity Scheme. The Premium paid/
payable is being charged to Profit and Loss Account
on accrual basis.
Grants
Government Grant related to specific fixed assets
which are depreciable, are treated as deferred
income which is recognized in the Profit and Loss
Statement on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful life of the asset. Such allocation to income
is usually made over the periods and in the
proportions in which depreciation on related assets
is charged.
Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of fixed assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of the assets up to the
date the assets is put to use. Other borrowing costs
are charged to the profit & loss account in the year
in which they are incurred.
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Taxes on Income
The provision for taxation is made at the prevailing
rate of tax applicable for the income of the previous
year as defined under Income-tax Act, 1961.

course of business. Some of the Advances, Sundry
Debtors, and Sundry Creditors and Security
deposit from customers are taken as per books
awaiting their respective confirmation.

The Company has the policy of reviewing and
passing proper adjustment entries for the Income
Tax made and excess/short tax provision for the
year after receiving orders from the AO/ CIT
Appeals. The company also makes a fair estimate
of the Income tax liabilities for the said year and
give effect to it in the Books of Account.
In accordance with Accounting Standard 22‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ the Company
has recognized Deferred Tax arising out of Timing
differences between taxable Income and accounting
income.

5.

Previous year figures have been re-arranged or regrouped wherever necessary.

6.

A demand of Rs. 56.36 lacs [Previous year Rs.
195.47 lacs] has been raised on completion of SalesTax assessments up to the year 2003-04 against
which the Company has paid Rs. 17.62 lacs
[Previous year Rs. 18.57 lacs] as advance against
appeal. No liability has been provided towards
the above demand as the Company expects to get
relief.

7.

Management has evaluated impairment of assets
as required by AS-28, impairment of assets which
was made mandatory for accounting period
commencing on or after 1st April, 2004. On the
basis of evaluation, management is of the opinion
that there is no impairment of assets of the company
as on 31st March, 2007.

8.

No borrowing cost has been capitalized during the
year.

9.

Advance includes due from officers of the company
Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 0.60 lacs). Maximum
amount due from the officers during the year Rs.
3.25 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 0.75 lacs).

10.

Finished Goods Stock includes goods sent on
consignment Rs. 224.07 lacs [Previous year Rs.
54.74 lacs] against which advance received Rs.
52.89 lacs [Previous year Rs. 39.26 lacs]. Raw
Materials include Goods at Port of Rs. 575.19 lacs
(Previous Year Rs. 105.01 lacs).

Related Parties Disclosure
Disclosure is being made separately for all the
transaction with related parties as specified under
Accounting standard 18 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when the company has
a present obligation as a result of past event, for
which it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
Contingent liabilities not provided for, are disclosed
by way of notes to the accounts.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed.
2.

Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debts: “Nil”

11.

Installments of Term Loan due within 12 months
are Rs. 746.11 lacs [Previous year Rs. 378 lacs].

3.

Contingent Liabilities in respect of:

12.

Interest paid includes :

Year ended
31.03.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

Year ended
31.03.2006
(Rs. in lacs)

i Outstanding
Bank Guarantees

Nil

81.64

ii Letter of Credits

Nil

Nil

660.63

0.55

38.91

Nil

iii Capital
Commitments [Net]
iv Excise duty &
Custom demands
4.

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2007 31.03.2006
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
To Bank
On Loan for Fixed
Period

105.20

63.29

On Other Loans

891.22

584.35

Nil

Nil

538.77

67.47

To Others
On Loan for Fixed Period
On Others

In the opinion of ‘Board of Directors’, the Current
Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately
of the value as stated, if realized, in the ordinary
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13.

Managerial remuneration under section 198 of
the Companies Act, 1956:

Entitlement Warrants under the head
Shareholders Funds in the Balance Sheet.

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2007 31.03.2006
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Salary

35.68

12.00

Contribution to
Provident Fund

0.28

0.19

Reimbursement of
Medical expenses

0.58

0.69

Director Insurance
Expenses

0.09

0.19

14.

Sale includes inter unit transfers of Rs. 1,696 lacs
[Previous year Rs. 3,720.91 lacs]

15.

Fixed Deposits of Rs. 466.54 lacs [Previous year
356.94 lacs] are under lien with the Bank towards
margin against Bank Guarantee & Letter of Credit
facilities.

16.

B)

20.

In respect of Lease hold Land the value amortised
during the year is Rs. 0.53 lacs [Previous year
Rs. 3.18 lacs].

18.

Auditors Remuneration includes:Year ended Year ended
31.03.2007 31.03.2006
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
As Auditors

6.74

2.53

For certification

2.25

0.28

Out of Pocket expenses

0.30

0.10

A)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2007 31.03.2006
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Interest Received
Other Income
(Govt. Grant)
Exchange Rate Difference
Premium on
Forward Contract
Other Miscellaneous
Income
21.

During the year, company has issued
40,08,344 Convertible Warrants @ Rs. 180/per warrants as under:
•

17,08,344 warrants issued as Investor
warrants and received application money
@ Rs. 18/- per warrant amounting Rs.
307.50 lacs and

•

23,00,000 warrants as Promoter’s warrants
and received application money for promoter
warrant @ Rs. 90/- per warrant amounting
to Rs. 2,070.00 lacs.

These warrants are convertible at the option
of allottees within 18 months from the date
of allotment in to equity shares of Rs. 10/each at a premium of Rs. 170/- per share.
The same is shown under Equity Share

In addition to that company has also
preferentially allotted 9,00,000 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 215/each to the promoters and others equally. The
proceeds have been utilized for the working
capital requirements, investment for increase
in the manufacturing capacities organic as
well as inorganic and for other general
corporate purposes.

Other Income Includes:-

Insurance charges includes amount paid for Key
Man Insurance premium amounting Rs. 3.90 lacs
(Previous year Rs. 3.90 lacs) taken on the life of
Managing Director and Chairman of the Company.

17.

19.

The proceeds of the entire issue have been
utilized for funding of the expansion of the
company’s existing business, acquisitions and
for general working capital purposes.

31.09

25.69

5.88

5.88

57.98

Nil

0.38

Nil

11.46

12.09

The Company has for the first time recognized
deferred taxes which result from timing difference
between Book profits and Tax profits. Consequently
the company has recognized the deferred tax
liability that would have accumulated, as if the
Accounting Standard-22 “Taxes on Income”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, had been in effect from beginning.
As a result:
Accumulated Net deferred tax liability as at 31st
March, 2007 aggregating Rs. 1,556.69 lacs has been
recorded as a reduction from Accumulated Profit
& Loss account balance as at 31st March, 2007.

22.

Depreciation on assets against the government
grant amounting Rs. 5.88 lacs (Previous year
Rs. 5.88 lacs) has been charged to the respective
grant account in accordance with norms laid in
Accounting standard (AS-12) Accounting for
Government Grants issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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23.

Disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards 18 on “Related party disclosure” are given below:
(i)

Related Party Relationships:
{a}

Where control exists

Nil

{b}

Key Management Personnel

Shri Ramesh Chand Garg [Chairman]
Shri Govind Prasad Garg [Managing Director up to 24.11.2006]
Shri Sanjay Agarwal [Managing Director w.e.f. 25.11.2006]
Shri Saurabh Garg [Whole-time Director]
Shri R. Ganesh [Whole-time Director w.e.f. 16.01.2007]

{c}

Relatives of Key Management

Shri Vivek Garg [Son of Govind Garg up to 30.06.2006]

Personnel

Shri Vineet Garg [Son of Govind Garg up to 30.06.2006]
Smt. Sheela Devi Garg [Wife of Ramesh Garg]
Smt. Meeta Garg [Wife of Sourabh Garg]

{d}

Other Related Parties

K. S. Food Products
K. S. Enterprises
Sanjay Kalicharan Agarwal & Associates
Ramesh Chand Sourabh Kumar HUF

(ii)

Transaction with Related Parties {Previous year figure are shown in [ ]}

Type of Related
Parties

Description &
Nature of the
Transaction

(i)

Remuneration Paid

Key Management
Personnel

(ii) Relatives of Key
Managerial Personnel

Volume of
Transaction
during the Year

Salary Paid
Issue of Share
Warrants
(Convertible in Equity Share)
Purchase of Goods
Issue of Share Warrant
(Convertible in Equity Share)

[13.00]

0.57

[2.28]

1,035.00

[75.00]

4.20

[Nil]

1,349.18

[11,311.33]

1,035.00

[Nil]

136.15
Nil

[1,116.51]
[14.69]

Job Charges Paid

Nil

[24.00]

Consultancy Paid

6.00

[Nil]

40.68

[27.17]

0.18

[0.18]

Sale of Goods
Job Charges Received

Rent Paid
Rent Received
24.

Amount Outstanding
as on 31.03.07
Receivable
Payable

36.63

Rent Paid
(iii) Other Related Parties

(Rs. in lacs)

7.21

Nil

[205.64]

[367.10]

Earning per Share

(a)

Net Profit after Tax available for Equity Share holders [Rs./lacs]

(b)

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/-each

2006-07

2005-06

5,732

1,517

1,92,99,527

1,77,92,900

30

9

Outstanding during the year [Nos. of Shares]
(c)

Basic earning per shares [Rs.] [a/b]

The previous year’s weighted average number of shares are restated according to Accounting Standards-20.
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25.

(a) No amount has been claimed from the Company under the interest on Delayed Payments to Small
Scale and Ancillary Undertakings Act, 1993.
(b) Sundry Creditors includes Rs. 86.36 lacs [Previous year Rs. 43.95 lacs] due to Small Scale Undertakings.
(c) Small Scale Industries undertakings to whom on amount of Rs. 1.00 lacs or more was payable and outstanding
for more than 30 days, which were within the agreed terms are:
C. P. Industries, Gwalior

Gwalior Plastic Industries, Gwalior

Dilip Oils, Morena

Gyan Plastic Manufactures

Tarun Oils Private Limited, Morena

Inustrial Packaging, Gwalior

Amar Deep Mineral Industries, Gujarat

Parth Packaging Products, Delhi

Brijwasi Packaging, Bhind

Radhi Sidhi Polymers, Bharatpur

26.

The company has incurred a sum of Rs. 296 lacs towards raising of fund through private equity placement
during the year which has been shown as project expenditures. The company has amortised one fifth of the said
expenditure through profit and loss i.e. Rs. 59 lacs during the year.

27.

Statement of additional Information
Class of Goods Manufactured:
(A) Capacity: [As certified by Management and Accepted by Auditors]
Unit
Licensed

(B)

Installed
Current
Year

Previous
Year
80,920

Mustard Oil (Owned & Leased)

M.T.

N/A

1,29,375

Refined Oil

M.T.

N/A

1,20,000

44,100

DOC

M.T.

N/A

1,33,200

1,33,200

Solvent Extracted Oil

M.T.

N/A

43,200

43,200

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

N/A

45,000

45,000

Wind Mill

M.W.

N/A

7.00

2.50

Trading & Production Data for Financial Year 2006-07

Description

Unit

Year Ended 31.03.07
Value in
Qty Rs. [lacs]

Year Ended 31.03.06
Value in
Qty Rs.[lacs]

Opening Stock
Oil

M.T.

26,274

10,081

19,178

7,275

DOC

M.T.

4174

186

19,265

826

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

635

231

418

174

-

203

-

109

Nos.

53,249

25

2,02,544
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Oil

M.T.

1,24,173

98,715

DOC

M.T.

1,30,261

1,10,697
10,046

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods
Empty Tin
Production

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

9,292

KWH

46,32,383

138

Nos.

28,85,021

32,77,901

Oil

M.T.

68,042

28,593

26,131

10,412

DOC

M.T.

19,716

845

9,088

405

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

-

-

194

65

-

1,522

-

590

16,21,550

764

-

-

Power
Empty Tin
Purchases

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods
Empty Tin

Nos.
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Unit

Year Ended 31.03.07
Value in
Qty Rs. [lacs]

Year Ended 31.03.06
Value in
Qty Rs. [lacs]

Oil

M.T.

2,03,036

95,323

1,17,750

48,661

DOC

M.T.

1,47,054

8,020

1,34,876

7,583

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

9,428

4,497

10,023

4,342

KWH

46,32,383

174

138

1

-

735

-

232

Description
Sale

Power
By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods
Empty Tin (Captive Consumption)

Nos.

44,79,305

-

34,27,196

-

Empty Tin (Sales)

Nos.

-

-

-

-

M.T.

15,452

6,020

26,274

10,082

DOC

M.T.

7,097

88

4,174

186

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

498

231

635

231

-

1,469

-

202

Nos.

80,515

37

53,249

25

M.T.

1,83,434

30,521

82,874

13,624

Closing Stock
Oil

By Product/Packing Material/Trading Goods
Empty Tin
Raw Material Consumed
Mustard Seed
Soyabean Seed

M.T.

-

-

22,230

2,364

Oil

M.T.

53,370

20,384

60,472

21,585

Palm/Other Oil

M.T.

9,861

3,353

10,386

2,005

Tin Plate

M.T.

2,769

1,209

3,370

1,524

Oil Cake

M.T.

1,40,700

1,879

1,00,721

2,450

HDPE

M.T.

417

300

226

142

28.

(Rs. in lacs)
Year Ended
31.03.07

Year Ended
31.03.06

1,087.30

2,102.15

Finished Goods

0.00

47.66

Capital Goods

36.53

0.00

165.41

147.48

5.74

1.66

1,693.99

645.75

CIF Value of Import:
Raw Material

29.

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Interest
Others

30.

Earnings in Foreign Currency
On Export of Goods (FOB basis)

31.

The Company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment. Segment have been identified in line with
the Accounting Standards (As-17) on “Segment Reporting” taking into account the organisation structure as
well as the deferment risk and returns of these segments.
The company’s reportable operating segments are “Oil Division”, “Solvent Division”, “Vanaspati Division”
and “Power Division” based on Industry and product lines. The types of products in each business segment are
as under:
{a}

Oil Division

Mustard Oil, Mustard Cake, Refined Oil, Tin Container, HDPE Jars

{b}

Solvent Division

Solvent Oil, De-Oiled Cake

{c}

Vanaspati Division

Vanaspati Ghee, Tin Container, HDPE Jars

{d}

Power Division

Power Generation (Wind Mills)
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1)

Segment revenues, Segment results and other informations are as under:
Primary Segment Reporting - Business Segment
Sr.
No.

Particulars

1.

REVENUE

(Rs. in lacs)
Oil
Division

External Sales-Domestic

Power
Division

Total

95,926

1,590

4,524

174

1,02,214

4,695

1,822

16

0

6,533

1,00,621

3,412

4,540

174

1,08,747

0

1,522

0

174

1,696

1,00,621

1,890

4,540

0

1,07,051

8,401

244

558

172

9,375

244

56

89

63

452

Profit after Depreciation

8,157

188

469

109

8,923

Less : Interest

1,395

33

66

41

1,535

Profit before Tax

6,762

155

403

68

7,388

Export
Total External Sales
Less : Inter Segment Sales
Total Revenue
2.

Solvent Vanaspati
Division
Division

RESULTS
Profit before Interest,
Depreciation & Taxation
Less : Depreciation

Less : Provision for Taxation

1,656

Profit after Tax

5,732

OTHER INFORMATION
3.

Segment Assets

31,370

5,907

3,037

3,777

44,091

4.

Segment Liabilities

11,792

400

532

0

12,724

5.

Capital Expenditure

584

0

0

768

1,352

245

56

89

62

452

0

0

0

0

0

(includes Capital work in progress)
6.

Segment Depreciation

7.

Net Cash Expenses other than Depreciation

2)

Segment assets includes all operating assets used by the segment and consist principally of operating cash and
bank balances, debtors, inventories and fixed assets net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities
include all operating liabilities and consist primarily of creditors and accrued liabilities. Segment assets and
liabilities do not include investments, inter-corporate deposits, Share capitals, reserve and surplus, borrowings,
provision for contingencies and Income tax (both current and deferred).

3)

Inter segment transfers are done at actual transfer prices.

4)

Secondary segment information - Geographical segment. The sales of the company are mainly in India. The
Export turnover is not significant in the context of total turnover. As such there are no reportable geographical
segments.
Signature of Schedules “A” to “N”.

As per our separate report of even date attached.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
R. S. Rathi
Partner
M. No. 12121
Place : Gwalior
Dated : 24th May, 2007

Sanjay Agarwal
(Managing Director)

Ramesh Chand Garg
(Chairman)

V. Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company General Business Profile

i. Registration Details:
Registration No. 3171

State Code: 10

Balance Sheet Date: 31.03.2007

ii. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. lacs)
Public Issue

Right Issue

NIL

NIL

Bonus Issue:

Private Placement:

940

430

iii. Position of Mobilisation and deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. lacs)
Total Liabilities

Total Assets

30,604

30,604

Sources of Funds:
Paid-up Capital
2,209

Reserve and Surplus
14,441

Secured Loan
8,518

Unsecured Loan
1,501

Equity Share Entitlement Warrant
2,378

Deferred Tax Laibility
1,557

Application of Funds:
Fixed Assets
13,102

Investments
0

Net Current Assets

Misc. Expenditure

17,265

237

iv. Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. lacs)

v.

Turnover (Gross Revenue)
1,08,854

Total Expenditure
99,479

Profit before Tax
7,388

Profit after tax
5,732

Earning per Share
Rs. 30/-

Dividend Rate (%)
15

Generic Names of Three Principles Products/ Services of the Company:
(As per Monetary Terms)
Item Code No. (ITC Code)

Production description

23069003

Oil cake and Oil cake meal of Mustard Seed,
Solvent Extraction (Defatted) Variety.

23040002

Oil cake and Soyabean, Solvent Extracted (Defatted) Variety.

15144002

Solvent Extracted Oil.

2100

Hydrogenated Vegetable Oil.

84101210

Power Generation (Wind Mills)

Place: Morena
Dated: 24th May, 2007

Ramesh Chand Garg
(Chairman)

Sanjay Agarwal
(Managing Director)
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V. Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)

